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Chairman’s Statement FEHREE

=5=
Cai Xifu
FEE

Chairman

On behalf of the Board of Directors of CNNC International Limited
(the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | am
pleased to present the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31st December, 2013 (the “Year").

BUSINESS

During the Year, as a result of the tremendous effort made by the
Group to develop the uranium products trading business, the revenue
of the Group has reached a record high, and the Group has become
a major force in the international uranium products trading market.
The Group has also continued to develop the two uranium mining
projects. All the exploration works of the Mongolian uranium project
have been completed. In accordance with the terms for the application
of the mining license, the Group has set up a professional team to
assess the feasibility study report of the project and has also made full
preparation for the pre-mining works. After the trial production of the
Niger uranium project in 2011 and 2012, full production was launched
in the Year. However, the production was halted temporarily for
improvement works and now has been resumed. During the Year, the
Company redeemed the entire principal amount of HK$414,000,000
of the convertible note issued in 2010 to its parent company. After
the redemption, the Group is currently free of any debt.
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Chairman’s Statement & 5 E (continued #)

RESULTS

Benefited from the uranium trading business, the Group reported
revenue of approximately HK$1,168,097,000 (2012: approximately
HK$417,442,000) for the Year, an increase of approximately 180%
over last year. Gross profit was approximately HK$143,157,000 (2012:
approximately HK$37,699,000), an increase of approximately 280%
over last year. However, due to the share of loss of an associate, a
loss was recorded for the Year and total comprehensive expense for
the Year attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$17,776,000 (2012: approximately HK$26,602,000). Nevertheless,
the results show a significant improvement as compared to last year.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The Group will continue to develop its two uranium mining projects
and look for opportunities to increase its portfolio of investment in
the uranium resources business. The current market price of uranium
products is still at a low level and is beneficial to the long term
investment of the Group. With the efforts spent in sourcing reliable
uranium products supplies and identifying buyers in the past years,
the Group is well positioned to further expand its uranium products
trading business in the coming years.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take this
opportunity to express my heartfelt appreciation to our shareholders,
customers and business partners for their long-standing supports and
my gratitude to the Group’s management team and staff for their
endeavours and contributions in the past year.

Cai Xifu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20th March, 2014
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MARKET OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 (the “Year Under Review"),
the Group was committed to developing its uranium product trading
business. Amid the impact of the nuclear incident in Fukushima of
Japan, the price of uranium products throughout the international
market has been decreasing since 2011 and the price of uranium in
the market even stood at the lowest level of recent years in 2013.
However, as the essential raw materials for nuclear power generation,
uranium products are still in demand to a certain extent in the market.
Leveraging on such potential for price appreciation, the Group will
continue to source manufacturers and traders and to identify potential
buyers in a comprehensive manner, in order to expand its uranium
product trading business.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Under
operation of the uranium trading business, the Group reported a

During the Year Review, benefited from the smooth

revenue of approximately HK$1,168,097,000 (2012: approximately
HK$417,442,000)
approximately 180% compared to the corresponding period last

from its operating business, increased by
year, realizing a gross profit of approximately HK$143,157,000
(2012: approximately HK$37,699,000), increased by 280% compared
to the corresponding period last year. Other income and gains of
approximately HK$8,855,000 (2012: approximately HK$12,550,000)
were mainly from interest income and exchange gains arising from the
appreciation of the value of Renminbi deposits of the Group. However,
during the Year Under Review, the working capital was employed
on the uranium products trading activities and also utilized for the
repayment of the convertible bond of HK$414,000,000 issued in 2010
(the "CN 2010"). Thus, the amounts available for deposit during the
Year Under Review were less than that of the corresponding period
last year. Other income and gains decreased by 29.4% compared to
the corresponding period last year. Despite of the increase in trading
activities, the administrative expenses of approximately HK$23,257,000
(2012:
below to that of the corresponding period last year, affirming the

approximately HK$23,570,000) was approximately 1.3%
achievement of the Group’s effort on cost control. The Group
mainly developed the uranium projects of proven reserves under two
exploration licenses in Mongolia. In 2012, the Group had decided not
to invest in the other remaining uranium exploration license projects
without any economic benefits from exploration in Mongolia, the
relevant provision of approximately HK$10,462,000 was made in the
corresponding period last year. No such provision was required during

the Year Under Review.

t Discussion and Analysis BBz & 247
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 2 [ & &8 & 7 HT (continued )

Through the acquisition of Ideal Mining Limited (“Ideal Mining”) in
2010, the Group holds an interest in an associate of the 37.2% equity
interest in Société des Mines d'Azelik S.A. (“SOMINA") which owns
a uranium mine in Niger. Trial production of SOMINA commenced in
2011, but so far the production process has not produced the targeted
results and its efficiency is below expectation. The construction of the
underground mine has also experienced delay. During the Year Under
Review, the production process was under reengineering and the
machinery was re-tuned to achieve optimum results. The production
was suspended for more than 3 months and it took a considerable
time afterwards for the production line to resume normal. After
nearly 2 years of trial production, SOMINA was deemed to have
commenced trading and operation throughout the Year Under Review
following to its first sale transaction recorded in the second half of
2012. According to the Group’s accounting policies, expenses such as
depreciation on the property, plant and machinery and interest on
borrowings, which were previously capitalized during the construction
and trial production period, have been fully charged to the profit and
loss account during the Year Under Review. The production stoppage
and the initial production gearing costs also have adverse effect on
the results of SOMINA. During the Year Under Review, a heavy loss
was recorded for the share of loss of an associate of approximately
HK$125,324,000 (2012: approximately HK$6,870,000). The Group
employed a professional valuer to form an updated fair value of the
SOMINA project at 31st December, 2013 to make sure the carrying
value of the interest in an associate is not higher than the fair value.

Following to the redemption of the CN 2010 in March 2013, during
the Year Under Review, the effect interest expenses of approximately
HK$8,093,000 (2012: approximately HK$32,464,000) were reduced
by approximately 75.1% compared to the corresponding period last
year. After the redemption, the Group is currently free of any debt.
The tax charge of approximately HK$13,864,000 was provided for

the trading profit during the Year Under Review (2012: approximately
HK$2,954,000).
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COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES FOR THE YEAR

Summing up the combined effects of the foregoing, loss for the
Year Under Review amounted to approximately HK$18,613,000
(2012: approximately HK$26,138,000). After taken into account of
the gain of approximately HK$837,000 (2012: loss of approximately
HK$464,000) of the exchange differences arising on translation of
foreign currencies, the total comprehensive expense for the Year
Under Review amounted to approximately HK$17,776,000 (2012:
approximately HK$26,602,000), a substantial reduction compared to
the corresponding period last year. The results continued to improve.

FUTURE STRATEGIES

The Group will continue to develop its uranium product trading
business and secure sale orders for the coming years, with a view to
generate stable income for the Group and make full preparation for
investing in uranium resources projects. As the current market price
of uranium products is still at a low level, it will be beneficial to the
long term investment of the Group. The Group will identify quality
projects of uranium resources and uranium resources related business
in the market to expand its business.

The Group will continue its development of the two projects in
Mongolia and Niger. For the project in Mongolia, the Company will
follow the laws and policies of Mongolia to set up a joint venture
with Mongolian companies to jointly develop the uranium resources
project in Mongolia. Following the latest rationalization of production
lines, the project in Niger has its production efficiency increased and
its process improved, and has begun to bring its costs under control.
The construction of underground mine of the project in Niger will
speed up, so as to make the best use of the resources reserve of the

project.

n and Analysis ‘& 32 [ 5 &R K& 5T (continued 1)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
As at 31st December, 2013, the Group employed approximately 16

(2012: 16
in Hong Kong,

) full-time employees of whom 3 (2012: 3) were based
6 (2012: 4) were based in the PRC and 7 (2012: 9)
were based in Mongolia. Total staff costs incurred during the Year
Under Review amounted to approximately HK$6,655,000 (2012:
approximately HK$9,475,000).

Remuneration policies and packages for the Group's employees are
based on their performance, working experiences and conditions
prevailing in the industry. Depending on the financial results of the
Group and the performance of individual employees, eligible staff
may also be granted discretionary performance bonuses, in addition
to basic salaries, retirement schemes and medical benefit schemes.
To raise work quality and management abilities of its employees, the
Group provides job rotation, in-house training and external training

courses to employees.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
As at 31st December, 2013, the Group did not have any bank
borrowings (at 31st December, 2012: Nil).

The Group had net current assets amounting to approximately
HK$405,266,000 (at 31st December, 2012: approximately
HK$298,642,000) and due to the redemption of the CN 2010 in
2013, the current liabilities decreased to approximately HK$47,599,000
2012: approximately HK$430,507,000) as at
31st December, 2013. During the Year Under Review, the Group

(at 31st December,

continued trading in uranium products, and as at 31st December,
2013, trade receivables (including from an associate) and payables
were HK$55,942,000 (at 31st December, 2012:
HK$102,802,000) and HK$10,019,000 (at 31st December,
approximately HK$3,032,000) respectively. Capital
on plant, equipment, leasehold improvements and construction in

approximately
2012:
expenditures

progress were approximately HK$180,000 during the Year Under
Review (2012: approximately HK$288,000). Capital expenditures on
exploration and evaluation assets were approximately HK$4,395,000
(2012: approximately HK$5,767,000). The Group did not have any
commitment to purchase additional property, plant and equipment that
had been contracted for but not provided in the financial statements
as at 31st December, 2013 (at 31st December, 2012: Nil).
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ssion and Analysis

During the Year Under Review, net cash inflow from operating
(2012:
approximately HK$203,945,000). Largely due to the redemption of

activities amounted to approximately HK$88,121,000

the CN 2010, the Group’s cash on hand and bank balances decreased
from approximately HK$621,879,000 as at 31st December, 2012 to
approximately HK$293,898,000 as at 31st December, 2013.

Total shareholders’ funds decreased from approximately
HK$964,747,000 as at 31st December, 2012 to approximately
HK$946,971,000 as at 31st December, 2013, mainly due to the
loss during the Year Under Review. The gearing ratio, in terms of
total debts to total assets, increased to approximately 0.05 (at 31st
December, 2012: approximately 0.31) as at 31st December, 2013.

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

There were no material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies for the Year Under Review.

EXPOSURE TO FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group’s income, expenditure of raw materials, manufacturing,
investment and borrowings are mainly denominated in USD, HKD,
Mongolian Tugrigs and RMB. Fluctuations of the exchange rates of
Mongolian Tugrigs and RMB against foreign currencies could affect
the operating costs of the Group. Currencies other than Mongolian
Tugrigs and RMB were relatively stable during the Year Under Review,
the Group did not expose to significant foreign exchange risk. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy for
hedging significant foreign currency exposure.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

There has been no significant change in the capital structure of the

Group since 31st December, 2012.
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Management Discussion and Analysis & 2 [ & &8 & 7 HT (continued )

CHARGE ON ASSETS EERE

Apart from the 37.2% of the share capital in SOMINA held by Ideal [T #5 i B 1848 %35 ASOMINAR A 2 37.2%
Mining pledged to a bank for banking facilities granted to SOMINA, — R& ZK# 8 F 4R 17 LA ER/S 1% T SOMINA R A 2
there was no charge on the Group's assets during the Year Under $R{TIEE 4N - MEEFEER » NEFE W &K

Review (2012: apart from the shares in SOMINA, Nil). HEMEE(ZZE ——F : B TSOMINAZR A
IR g o

PURCHASE OR REDEMPTION OF THE EEERAAT EHES

COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

During the Year Under Review, neither the Company nor any of its EEEEE R - KA T sk AL [ KB A 5 &

subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's BT HESHELQAQFEM EHESF -

listed shares.
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overnance Report &%

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has complied with the code provisions laid down in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the
year ended 31st December, 2013 (the “Year").

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) are
collectively responsible for overseeing the business and affairs of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) that aims at enhancing the
Company'’s value for stakeholders. Roles of the Board include reviewing
and guiding corporate strategies and policies; monitoring financial
and operating performance; ensuring the integrity of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting systems; and setting appropriate
policies in managing risks of the Group.

The Board currently comprises a total of six members including one
executive director, two non-executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors (“INEDs”), whose details are set out on pages
21 to 23. Members of the Board have different professional, industry
experiences and backgrounds so as to bring in valuable contributions
and advices for the development of the Group’s business. More than
one-third of the Board are INEDs and one of the INEDs has appropriate
related financial management expertise as required under the Listing
Rules.

Directors have full access to accurate, relevant and timely information
of the Group through management and are able to obtain independent
professional advices on issues whenever deemed necessary by the
directors.

Regular meetings are held by the Board at least four times a year to
discuss strategies and business issues, including financial performance
of the Group, and additional meetings will be held when necessary.
The Company has held regular board meetings in accordance with the
Listing Rules and the CG Code and also the Articles of Association of
the Company, formal notice and board meeting documents are also
given in advance to all directors. During the Year, the Board held four
regular meetings. Members of the Board can attend the meetings
either in person or through electronic means of communication. A
record of the directors’ attendance at regular Board meetings is set out
on page 20. During the Year, the Chairman held two meetings with
the non-executive directors (including INEDs) without the executive

directors present.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are segregated
in order to reinforce their independence and accountability. Their respective
responsibilities are clearly established and set out in writing. The Chairman
leads the Board's workings and proceedings, while the Chief Executive
Officer is responsible for implementing the Group’s strategies and policies
and for conducting the Group’s businesses.

THE TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The term of office of each of the non-executive directors is the
period from his appointment to the time of retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are independent.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all the
directors, all the directors confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code and the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors adopted by the Company
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group. With the assistance of the
accounting department, which is under the supervision of the
management of the Company, the directors ensure that the financial
statements of the Group have been properly prepared in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards. The
directors also ensure that the publication of the accounts of the Group
is in a timely manner.

A report of the independent auditor on the Group’s accounts is set

out in this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ TRAINING EHIE

Pursuant to the CG Code, directors should participate in continuous 1B #ESFH| EEELX2HFEHZELR AR
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and 37 2 B8 )8 1 55 /9 A0 it M 5 86 o Lt Jh HE (R 18
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains ZS#ELAE2EENALRTEAENBRT
informed and relevant. During the Year, all directors have participated ¥$E&ZRELER - RAFEER > 2B EE
in appropriate continuous professional development activities by B EFEBEFEEIRREXEEEELAAAE
way of attending training seminar or reading material on legal and ﬁ*‘i%?ﬂ%ﬁﬁZ?ﬁ&&iﬁ%I%ﬁ@ﬁ HE
regulatory subjects relevant to the Company’s business or to the %} U2 HEBEEMNFEEZELRE LY -
directors’ duties and responsibilities.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND INTERNAL AUDIT &R ES % & R &B 5t

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining sound ZEZREHRBEBSALAEEIEFESEAN
and effective internal control system for the Group to safequard 2~ NEPEZIEFIE @ R RERERE RARQ
investments of the shareholders and assets of the Company at all &EE -

times.

The system of internal controls aims to help achieving the Group’s R EFES 2 %I 8 B 4 1 Eﬂ$$@L§K%ﬁKE
business objectives, safeguarding assets and maintaining proper Z - REEZEENNBE 2 FT A0 8k DR 1

accounting records for provision of reliable financial information. 7] 5z BA 7 &4 - %A1 - ﬁ%ﬁ%‘]f;/\ﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁ
However, the design of the system is to provide reasonable, but not MR &k LIH E AR ERFE EIB R IEMH
absolute, assurance against material misstatement in the financial &IEMIFBEHRE  UEEMIEEBRERE
statements or loss of assets and to manage rather than eliminate risks B 12 i [ % 2 5k BUE [ -

of failure when business objectives are being sought.

Management has conducted regular reviews during the Year on EBEEBRAFE T HBFT ABELHE 2
the effectiveness of the internal control system covering all material  BXAK - W& B 7 - A@&#EﬁEZFﬁEE
controls in area of financial, operational and compliance controls, A&  EBEEREBRENEZETE NE
various functions for risks management as well as physical and B EHRZE o

information system security.

Procedures have been designed for the business objectives, safequard AEBEREKEIZ - REEEREIELWD
asset against unauthorized use or disposition, ensure proper MAHEE - MR ZEFEHR BN DR
maintenance of books and records for the provision of reliable financial 4 /X & {8 F3 8k T 2% 2 A 52 BA 75 B8 - A Ko
information for internal use or publication, and to ensure compliance R E &R E B B AR H E ZIERF o
with relevant legislations and regulations.

Internal Audit Department has conducted an on going independent W #fEZSFFIHEB T B A ER R I E
review on the effectiveness of the system of internal control and #HIE N EBREIE 2 KW R AE B
risk management of the Group and considers it to be adequate and EFREEX - BAAEBL TR E 2 N3
effective. Reports on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control  ES#ERR A FriE LR E  CIREEZEZES
on difference areas had been submitted to the Audit Committee. It is I - FE IR THEEABERSFERN
noted that there is no significant areas of concern which may affect ZBES#E K & 2 A &K -

the effectiveness of the internal control system.

Throughout the Year, the Board is satisfied that the Group has fuly AFER  EZREMH AEEZ2EEST D
complied with the code provisions on internal control as set out in ¥ & A SF B C.21%C.2.215 B & A 8 A &6
o ’ —

,_C.2.1 aﬂd.{ 2 ftEc‘)_q_e. "
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Corporate Governance Report

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, the remuneration paid to the Company’s auditor, Messrs
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as follows:

—z—=g5R mxErsRaa]| 15

1% S5 B BN &
RAER - ENARR KB EE « EE
SHEBTZHEBIMT

Services rendered

Fees paid/payable

Frid IR 3 Bt FE 18l &
2013 2012
—E—=f —Z=—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE T BT
Audit services EET RS 1,712 1,633

Non-audit services (i.e. Taxation and FEF RS

Professional Service) (BB REERE) 31 42
1,743 1,675

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s Audit Committee was first established in December
2002 and its terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
Group's financial reporting system, internal control procedures, risk
management, assessing the adequacy of the human resources of the
Group's accounting and finance department and maintaining good
and independent communications with the management as well as
external auditor of the Company. Its current members include:

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
Mr. Xu Shouyi
Mr. Cui Liguo
Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of four members of the Audit Committee are the INEDs of
the Company. Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry has appropriate related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing Rules.
None of them is employed by or otherwise affiliated with former or
existing auditor of the Company.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held two meetings and also
had two meetings with the management and external auditors of the
Company. The minutes of the Audit Committee meetings were tabled
to the Board for noting and for action by the Board where appropriate.
The attendance of each member is set out on page 20.

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s interim
and annual report for the year ended 31st December, 2013 and the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group. The Audit
Committee aIso reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the

and made recommendations to the
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company’'s Remuneration Committee was established in
September 2005. Its current members include:

Mr. Cui Liguo (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
Mr. Xu Shouyi

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry

Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of four members of the Remuneration Committee are the
INEDs of the Company. The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the Company’s website.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and
structure for the remuneration of directors and reviewing their specific
remuneration package for directors and senior management, including
terms of salary, discretionary bonus scheme, benefits in kind, pension
rights, compensation payments and other long-term incentive schemes
by reference to market conditions, performance of the Group and the
individual and corporate goals and objectives as set by the Board from
time to time.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year. The
minutes of the Remuneration Committee meeting were tabled to
the Board for noting and for action by the Board where appropriate.
The attendance of each member is set out on page 20. During
the meeting, the committee members discussed the policy for the
remuneration of executive directors and senior management and
assessed the performance of executives.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
On 27th March, 2012, the Board approved the set up of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Its current members include:

Mr. Cai Xifu (Chairman of the Nomination Committee)
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei

Three out of four members of the Nomination Committee are the
INEDs of the Company and the Chairman of the committee is the
Chairman of the Board. The terms of reference of the Nomination

Committee are available on the Company’s website.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (ontinved)

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board at least
annually; making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy; identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and selecting
or making recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorships; assessing the independence
of the INEDs; and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning
for directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year. The
attendance of each member is set out on page 20.

REVIEW OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
FUNCTIONS

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of developing
and maintaining sound and effective corporate governance within the
Group and is committed to ensuring that an effective governance
structure is put in place to continuously review and improve the
corporate governance practices within the Group in light of the
evolving operating environment and regulatory requirements.

The Group has adopted appropriate policies and practices on corporate
governance and the Board would make recommendations to the Group
by reviewing the operation of the Group from time to time. The Group
has adopted a code of conduct and compliance manual applicable
to its employees and directors. The Board confirmed that the Group
has complied with the legal and regulatory requirements and ensures
the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure regarding
corporate governance.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the Year, the Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy
in line with the amendments to the CG Code regarding board diversity.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Li Philip Sau Yan (“Mr. Li”), is responsible
to the Board for ensuring that Board procedures are followed and
Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. Mr. Li has
been appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company since 5th
November, 2008. Mr. Li is also responsible for ensuring that the Board
is fully appraised of the relevant corporate governance developments
relating to the Group and facilitating the professional development of
the directors.

Mr. Li confirmed that he has complied with all the required
qualifications, experience and training requirements of the Listing
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Board and management shall ensure shareholders’ rights and
all shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. Pursuant to the
Company’s Articles of Association, any shareholder entitled to receive
notice of and to attend and vote at a general meeting of the Company
is entitled to appoint another person as his proxy to attend and vote
instead of him.

Chairmen of the various Board committees, or failing the Chairmen,
any member from the respective committees, must attend the annual
general meetings of the Company to address shareholders’ queries.
External auditor shall also be invited to attend the Company’s annual
general meetings and are available to assist the Directors in addressing
queries from shareholders relating to the conduct of the audit and
the preparation and content of their auditor report.

RIGHT TO CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY
GENERAL MEETING AND PUT FORWARD
PROPOSALS

Pursuant to Article 68 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings can be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more members of the Company deposited at
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office,
specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists,
provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company which carries the right of voting at extraordinary general
meetings of the Company. Extraordinary general meetings may also
be convened on the written requisition of any one member of the
Company which is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s))
deposited at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the
registered office, specifying the objects of the meeting and signed
by the requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at
extraordinary general meetings of the Company. If the Board does not
within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition proceed
duly to convene the meeting, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any
of them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may convene the extraordinary general meeting in the
same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may
be convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the date
of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.
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RIGHT TO PUT ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD
Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All enquiries
can be in writing and sent for the attention of the Company Secretary
in one of the following ways:

1. By post: CNNC International Limited
Unit 2809, 28/F China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
By facsimile: (852) 2598 1010
By email: info@cnncintl.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company sees high quality reporting as an essential element
in building successful relationship with the Company’s shareholders.
The information provided will not only comply with the different
requirements in force but to provide additional information to
enhancing communications with shareholders and the investment
public. It is part of a continuous communication that encompasses
meetings, announcements to the market and circulars to shareholders
as well as periodic written reports in the form of preliminary
announcement of results and interim and annual reports.

There was no significant change in the constitutional documents of
the Company during the Year.

The Company also maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information of the Group is provided.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT BOARD, EER -BERZEEE  HNE
AUDIT, REMUNERATION AND NOMINATION EERiEZEETETERRE
COMMITTEES’ MEETINGS, GENERAL XEZHBEL %

MEETINGS

Annual/

Audit Remuneration  Nomination Extraordinary

Board Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting Meeting
EER BHRZEET FWNESE REZF5T RFEES
EHER i i L HRXE

Total number of meetings held ANFERETTZ 4 2 1 1 2
during the Year BERER

Number of meetings attended: Fff /& @ 3 X & -

Chairman and Non-executive * &2 3k
Director BITESE

Mr. Cai Xifu EHERE 4(100%) N/A N/A 1(100%) 2(100%)

iE A TEA

Chief Executive Officer and {THl 48 &; &

Executive Director BITEE

Mr. Zhang Hongging RAE LA 1(25%) N/A 1(100%) 1(100%) 0(0%)
(resigned on (Z2—=% i@ A
31st December, 2013) +-A=1+—H

B )

Executive Vice President and #17EI 4 & &
Executive Director BITES

Ms. Wang Ying TRz 3(100%) N/A N/A N/A 2(100%)
(appointed on (ZZ2—=F TiE A A i A
1st April, 2013) mA—H L)

Mr. Xu Hongchao AL R A 1(100%) N/A N/A N/A N/A
(resigned on (Z&2—=F i@ A i A i A i A
1st April, 2013) rmA—BEHT)

Non-executive Director EBTES

Mr. Xu Shouyi RITELE 4(100%) 2(100%) 1(100%) N/A 2(100%)

38 A

Independent Non-executive BIEHITEE
Directors

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry ok % 8 5t & 4(100%) 2(100%) 1(100%) 1(100%) 2(100%)

Mr. Cui Liguo ENE %4 4(100%) 2(100%) 1(100%) 1(100%) 2(100%)

Mr. Zhang Lei RELE 4(100%) 2(100%) 1(100%) 1(100%) 2(100%)




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Mr. Cai Xifu, aged 50, currently serves as a director of the finance
department of China National Nuclear Corporation (“CNNC"), the
ultimately holding company of the Company. Mr. Cai joined CNNC
in 1992 and has substantial experience in capital management and
managerial economic. Mr. Cai has served the foreign affairs division
and funds division of the finance department of CNNC. Mr. Cai has
also served CNNC Finance Company, Ltd., a subsidiary of CNNC, as
its planning and investment manager, assistant to general manager,
deputy general manager and general manager. Before joining CNNC,
Mr. Cai had served the national foreign currency department of The
People’s Bank of China and the central business department of the
State Administration of Foreign Exchange. Mr. Cai graduated from
Hangzhou University in 1987 with a bachelor degree in finance and
is qualified as a senior economist.

Executive Director

Ms. Wang Ying, aged 41, joined CNNC in 2010 and has substantial
experience in finance, management in economy and strategic planning.
Before joining CNNC, Ms. Wang had served the Forecast Department
of Economic and Information Center of Beijing Planning Commission
(At R W atZ 4K 5 B 07881 25) as Deputy Director, Hong Yuan
Security Ltd. (RIRBEHR D ERAF]) as Chief Macro-economy
Analyst and Assistant to President, and worked in Research Center
of City Development and Environment of Chinese Academy of Social
Sciences (B4t & BI 2B Th 3 B EIRF A 32 0. Ms. Wang had
served the planning department of Chinergy Nuclear Technical Co. Ltd.
(B BERIF B R A F]) (jointly owned by China Nuclear Engineering
Group Corporation (FEI#Z T 2% &£ E 2 7A]) and Tsinghua University
(B #E X&) as Manager and Assistant to President. During 2007 to
2010, Ms. Wang was seconded to China Atomic Energy Authority
(BRI TZ X4 —7]) and National Energy Administration ([
KeeRBENA]). Ms. Wang had also served the Operating and
Planning Department of CNNC (7 B#x T % % @ 2 78] 1 &) 8 & 26)
as Director and was the Secretary of China Nuclear Exploration and
Design Association (FFEI#Z T &) 25T 1 &). She is also a director
of SOMINA. Ms. Wang graduated from Beijing Agricultural University
with a bachelor degree in Agricultural Planning and Statistic in 1994.
She obtained a doctor degree in Economic Management from China
Agricultural University in 1999. She also obtained a post doctorate
degree in Economy from Peking University in 2003. She was qualified

as a senior economist.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Xu Shouyi, aged 56, had served as a director of the audit
department of China Nuclear Energy Industry Corporation (“CNEIC")
and currently is the general manager of Yenaut Industrial Co., Ltd.
("Yenaut”). Both CNEIC and Yenaut are subsidiaries of CNNC. Mr. Xu
has experience in financial audit. Mr. Xu joined CNEIC in 1990 and had
served as deputy director of the audit department of CNEIC. Before
joining CNEIC, Mr. Xu had served as finance manager of it R EEH# S
BERAMRAF. Mr. Xu graduated from Beijing Open University and
is qualified as a senior accountant.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry, aged 66, currently serves as an
Executive Director & Deputy Chairman of Worldsec Limited, a company
listed on the London Stock Exchange. Mr. Cheong also serves as
an independent non-executive director of Cheung Kong (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 0001), Hutchison Telecommunications Hong Kong
Holdings Limited (stock code: 215), New World Department Store
China Limited (stock code: 825), Greenland Hong Kong Holdings
Limited (formerly known as “SPG Land (Holdings) Limited”) (stock
code: 337), Cheung Kong Infrastructure Holdings Limited (stock code:
1038), TOM Group Limited (stock code: 2383), all being companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Creative Energy Solutions
Holdings Limited (stock code: 8109), and was an independent non-
executive director of Hong Kong Jewellery Holding Limited (formerly
known as “Excel Technology International Holdings Limited”) (stock
code: 8048), all being companies listed on the GEM Board of the Stock
Exchange. He is an independent non-executive director of BTS Group
Holdings Public Company Limited, a Company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Thailand. Mr. Cheong has over 35 years of experience
in securities industry. He is also a member of the Securities and
Futures Appeals Tribunal, a member of the Advisory Committee of
the Securities and Futures Commission and was previously a member
of the Disciplinary Panel A of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Cheong holds a Bachelor of Science (mathematics)
degree from Chelsea College, University of London and a Master of
Science (Operational Research and Management) degree from Imperial

College, University of London.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors (ontinued)

Mr. Cui Liguo, aged 44, is currently a partner of Guantao Law Firm,
a law firm in Beijing, PRC. He has been practising law since 1993.
Mr. Cui founded Guantos Law Firm in 1994. He has over 20 years of
experience in legal sector. Mr. Cui is also an independent non-executive
director of APT Satellite Holdings Ltd. (stock code: 01045), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, an independent
director of China National Software & Service Co., Ltd. (F B &4 &
B AT BR 7% B% 17 8 R 2 7)) (stock code: 600536), a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, and SUFA Technology Industry Co.,
Ltd., CNNC (R Z# BB B ¥R B R A A]) (stock code: 000777),
a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He is also a
member of the Finance & Securities Committee of All China Lawyers
Association; a vice general secretary of the Chamber of Financial Street;
and the legal counselor in the internal control group of securities
issuing of Guodu Securities Co., Ltd., Bohai Securities Co., Ltd. and
China Investment Securities Co., Ltd.. Mr. Cui was an independent
director of UBS SDIC Fund Management Co., Ltd. (BI#& iR E S &
B AR AF]), SDIC Xinji Energy Co., Ltd. (& FHEERBHAERAD
Al) (stock code: 6019189), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange and Beijing Navinfo Co., Ltd. (4t 5 /0 % B ¥ RO B R
A A]) (stock code: 002405), a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. Mr. Cui graduated from the China University of Political
Science and Law with a bachelor degree in laws in 1991. He also holds
a master degree in laws from the same university.

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 44, currently serves as general manager of
Beijing Tonghu Dajie sales department of Great Wall Securities Co.,
Ltd. (R FEHBMREMEAF]), a company Mr. Zhang joined since
1994. Mr. Zhang has over 20 years of experience in the securities
industry. Mr. Zhang graduated from Renmin University of China in
1996, major in commercial and economic management. Mr. Zhang
holds the qualification of settlement practitioner granted by Beijing
Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Li Philip Sau Yan, aged 55, is the Company Secretary and
Financial Controller of the Company. Mr. Li joined the Company in
November 2008. He had over 30 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management. Mr. Li is an associate member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Li is a graduate of Imperial College of the University

of London and holds a Bachelor of Science degree.

EERBREw
BIAFBITES =
EFEEE  44m HETEIIREBERE
MEBMEBA —QWN-FERARER
B R—NNIE - Bl R B &S 2 A F 15
BT - EREEEAERARBBD20FLKR - EX
ERIFRAHRAMER EMARIEAFER
B R AE (RO AR5 - 01045) B FENITE
F LBEHFRIGALETRAFRESRMG R
1l AR 7 A 10 A IR A 7] (38 %5 1 600536)
MERINBHR S EM AR R ZERRRIRE
X BRMBERAR (BHMRM  000777) B &
E-WREFEEEZMEEMESFFTE
ZECZE  ¢REEEINER  HHE
HFBREMTAR  DEEFROBRAF KL
FPREAREFERETARFFBITAK
NNEFERER c EAEEARRKBEESE
BERARF - EEBEFXZALETARIEIE
FEERBRNBRAR (FHMNE : 6019189)
NORYIFEHR BET LA R 7= 4 B # R
EROER AT (FHMREE: 002405) B =
B EAER-NN—F2ERPREBE
KRB EEEEL BN BRZBRERZE
{I=Rug=—Y VA

SREFXE - 4458 - — N NEFIMARE
EREERR  BERMEFBREERA
ERBHAHEXRPAERE - RELEHER
FEBTHERBEB20FKER - REER —
NAREEXERPEARAREFELEE
BEX - RELABUAREZFX ST LRER
HEEBER -

EREEE
FFEE S5 RARFIMERIM LR
B FRER_ZZENFT-—RANMALXRA
REBEABIOFAEBEZE St kUBER
K- FREREEELHABI TS
MASEERBEEGTMAGEREE - F
5t 4 2 X 03 Bl fm BUK 2 Imperial College -
MGRIBEL B -




24

CNNC International Limited Annual Report 2013

port EERBEHE

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of
the Company’s principal subsidiaries, an associate and a joint operation
are set out in notes 33, 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December, 2013
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 33.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31st December, 2013, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$787,120,000.
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Directors’ Report & H R M EE (continued #)

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Chairman and non-executive director
Mr. Cai Xifu

Executive directors

Ms. Wang Ying (appointed on 1st April, 2013)

Mr. Zhang Hongging (resigned on 31st December, 2013)

Mr. Xu Hongchao (resigned on 1st April, 2013)

Non-executive director
Mr. Xu Shouyi

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew Henry

Mr. Cui Liguo

Mr. Zhang Lei

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Cai Xifu and Mr. Zhang Lei will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

All independent non-executive directors had entered into a service
contract with the Company for an term of three years commencing
12th November, 2011. Ms. Wang Ying had entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
1st April, 2013. The abovementioned service contracts shall continue
thereafter until terminated by either party giving to the other party
not less than three months prior written notice.

The term of office of each of the non-executive directors is the
period from his appointment to the time of retirement by rotation in

accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.
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SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31st December, 2013, none of the directors nor their associates had
any shares or underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.

SHARE OPTIONS

The share option scheme adopted on 11th December, 2002 (“2002
11th
December, 2012. A new share option scheme was adopted by the
Company on 3rd June, 2013 (“2013 Share Option Scheme”) and
its particulars are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial

Share Option Scheme”) was expired and terminated on

statements. No share option had been granted under the 2002 Share
Option Scheme and 2013 Share Option Scheme since their adoption.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed under the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS”
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,

the Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ Report & H R M EE (continued #)

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31st December, 2013, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that the following shareholders had notified the Company of
relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company.

Long positions
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
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Percentage of
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issued ordinary  capital of the

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held Company
FifRE 81T EXRAT S8BT
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CNNC Overseas Uranium Holding Limited Corporate interest 326,372,273 66.72%

("CNNC Overseas”) (Note)

PiZE N EERBR AT ((FZEHM) (&) YNGR X

China Uranium Corporation Limited (“CUC") (Note) Corporate interest 326,372,273 66.72%

A B B A8 S i 2 R A R (T A 8 1) (B 53) NEIE R

China National Nuclear Corporation (“CNNC") (Note) Corporate interest 326,372,273 66.72%
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Note:  CNNC Overseas is the immediate holding company of the Company, which is wholly owned
by CUC, whereas CUC is wholly owned by CNNC.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified
of any other relevant interests or short positions in the issued share

capital of the Company as at 31st December, 2013.
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PURCHASE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
On 23rd April, 2013, the Company (for itself and on behalf of each
of its subsidiaries) entered into the Framework Agreement with CNNC
(for itself and on behalf of each of its subsidiaries, where applicable)
in relation to supply of uranium products, engagement of CNNC's
technical support services and other administrative support services.
The transactions contemplated under the Framework Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Details of the continuing connected
transactions were set out in the Company’s announcement and circular
dated 24th April, 2013 and 15th May, 2013 respectively and the
continuing connected transactions for the year were disclosed in note
32 (v) and (vi) to the consolidated financial statements (the “Disclosed
Continuing Connected Transactions”).

The aggregate annual values of the Disclosed Continuing Connected
Transactions have not exceeded the maximum aggregate annual
values of relevant amount disclosed in the announcement and circular
dated 24th April, 2013 and 15th May, 2013 respectively made by the
Company in respect of each of the continuing connected transactions.

The Company’s Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed
the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions as mentioned
above and have confirmed that the Disclosed Continuing Connected
Transactions have been entered into:-

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2)  either on normal commercial terms or, if there are not sufficient
comparable transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Group than
terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties; and

(3) in accordance with the Framework Agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole.
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Directors’ Report & £ B &

(contmued &)

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Assurance Engagements 3000 ‘Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information’ and
with reference to Practice Note 740 ‘Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules’ issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusion
in respect of the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

In accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu reported their conclusions to the Board that in respect of
the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions:-

(1) nothing has come to his attention that causes him to believe
the Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions have not been
approved by the Board;

(2)  nothing has come to his attention that causes him to believe the
Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions were not entered
into, in all material respects, in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and

(3) with
Continuing Connected Transactions,

respect to the aggregate amount of the Disclosed
nothing has come to
his attention that causes him to believe that the Disclosed
Continuing Connected Transactions have exceeded the maximum
aggregate annual value disclosed in the previous announcement
dated 24th April, 2013 made by the Company in respect of the
Disclosed Continuing Connected Transactions.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities on

the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Company considers all

of the independent non-executive directors are independent.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by
the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are recommended
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
directors and eligible employees, details of which are set out in note
27 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cai Xifu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20th March, 2014
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Independent Auditor’'s Report &7 #% gk B 3k & &

Deloitte.
=)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CNNC INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CNNC
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 33 to 94, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31st December,
2013, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st December,
2013, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
20th March, 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 4Bz k22 ERER

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 HIZE - — =+ - A=+ —-HILFE

2013 2012
—g-=f —E—_fF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B o BETT BT T
Revenue WA 5 1,168,097 417,442
Cost of sales £ & AR (1,024,940) (379,743)
Gross profit EH 143,157 37,699
Other income and gains = N & 7 8,855 12,550
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAX (87) (67)
Administrative expenses TR X (23,257) (23,570)
Impairment loss recognised on exploration &t &) & & 7T {f & & # 32
and evaluation assets 2 BIEEE 14 — (10,462)
Share of loss of an associate EEHE AR 2 EE (125,324) (6,870)
Effective interest expenses on convertible 7] # % 22 & & B A B
notes E53 23 (8,093) (32,464)
Loss before taxation B %4 A 8 18 9 (4,749) (23,184)
Taxation IR 10 (13,864) (2,954)
Loss for the year FREIE (18,613) (26,138)
Other comprehensive income HhZ2ElA(FHX)
(expense)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit #5-T & & #1 77 48 = 158 25
or loss ZIEH
Exchange differences arising on BREREINEREE
translation to presentation currency VE =% 837 (464)
Total comprehensive expense for the year AR R AB A JE(G F KX
attributable to owners of the Company 2 R X #2458 (17,776) (26,602)
Loss per share & & 18
— Basic and diluted — HAK#E (HK3.8 cents) (HK5.3 cents)
12 (7 %53.81l) (78 #5.311)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position %

At 31st December, 2013

RZZE—=F+=-A=+—H

SRR R

2013 2012
—¥—=F —E—_fF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
B o BEETR BT T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BELEZE 13 27,068 31,500
Exploration and evaluation assets B R HEE 14 198,560 194,073
Interest in an associate REE R e 2R 15 316,077 440,877
541,705 666,450
Current assets BN A E
Inventories BE 17 98,814 —
Trade and other receivables and FE W B 5 BR 3R & E b g
prepayments WK I8 DA R FB 1 5RIR 18 4,211 107,270
Amount due from an associate JE Uk B X B 5RIE 19 55,942 —
Bank balances and cash RITHERNIRE 20 293,898 621,879
452,865 729,149
Current liabilities MEBAR
Trade and other payables and BB SRR R HAE
accruals R IB A & FE 5T R K 21 26,800 16,437
Amount due to JERT Y
intermediate holding company ERR A R R IE 22 1,588 1,302
Amount due to JE T — ﬁ
a fellow subsidiary (SES =N P 22 24 —
Income tax payable ERAET 19,187 4,978
Convertible notes R ER 23 — 407,790
47,599 430,507
Net current assets RBEEFE 405,266 298,642
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTEBE 946,971 965,092
Non-current liability EREEE
Deferred taxation IR ER I8 24 — 345
Net assets BEFE 946,971 964,747
Capital and reserves I % 5
Share capital fi& 7= 25 4,892 4,892
Reserves i 942,079 959,855
Equity attributable to ZAN/NE]
owners of the Company HBHAELER 946,971 964,747
The consolidated financial statements on pages 33 to 94 were H33ZMUEZHEAVBHRECHZT—HF

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of directors on 20th
March, 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cai Xifu
E28=E

DIRECTOR
E

=A *JrEIZWEE%%)%ﬁt/E&Ti%%ﬁ 3
HTIIEERERE

Wang Ying
Fx

DIRECTOR
ko
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tatement of Changes in Equity 434 & AR& 8%

ber, 2013 BE_FT—=Fft+_HA=+—BHLEE

Non- Convertible
Share Share Capital distributable Merger notes equity Translation Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
FE5 ik TRBERER
BEx RHEE SXRE fEE  AHHEE BAGE  EREE RithsH &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT AE%Tr AETx BT EETT BRI BRI BETT EETT
(Note 25) (Note 26) (Note 26)
(M 5£25) (Msk2e)  (BaE26)
At 1st January, 2012 R-E—=-%—-A—8 4,892 868,805 81,471 16,584 127 60,636 5,148 (46,314) 991,349
Loss for the year FNEE — — - - - — — (26,138) (26,138)
Exchange differences arising on ¥ E A& £ 2
translation ERER — — - — — — (464) — (464)
Total comprehensive expense for 4 A2 &
the year Mx@E — — — — — — (464) (26,138) (26,602)
At 31st December, 2012 RZZT—=—F+-A=+—-H 4,892 868,805 81,471 16,584 127 60,636 4,684 (72,452) 964,747
Loss for the year FRER — — — — — — — (18,613) (18,613)
Exchange differences arising on 2 H FiE 4 2
translation EREH — — — — — — 837 — 837
Total comprehensive income FRNEE
(expense) for the year LONGEIF: & | - — — — — - 837 (18,613) (17,776)
Transfer on redemption of A & ] 7] #0
convertible notes B 5 4 1 48 — — (644) — — (60,636) - 61,280 —
Deregistration of subsidiaries HHMB AR M — — — — — — 2,868 (2,868) —
At 31st December, 2013 RZZ—=F+-A=+—-H 4,892 868,805 80,827 16,584 127 — 8,389 (32,653) 946,971
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 461 4©n &%

2 O
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 HIZE =T — =+ - A=+ —-HILFE

2013 2012
—E-=F —E—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEEH
Loss before taxation BRI AIE 1B (4,749) (23,184)
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BERZETE 4,632 3,029
Impairment loss recognised on exploration and SR LA E ERR R
evaluation assets EEB — 10,462
Effective interest expenses on convertible notes AR RE 2 BERANERX 8,093 32,464
Loss on written off of property, plant and equipment iS5 % - ME K&
BBz EE — 2
Interest income MEWA (3,845) (6,335)
Share of loss of an associate JEREEE NRZ BB 125,324 6,870
Operating cash flows before movements in BEE2EFN2
working capital reRiene 129,455 23,308
(Increase) decrease in inventories & (g m) (98,814) 278,684
Decrease (increase) in trade and JE N B 5 85 3 e H b fE UL SRR
other receivables and prepayments DA R TR AR BRIE R A (3 n) 103,059 (101,004)
Increase in amount due from an associate JRE Lt Bk 5 1 B] SR IR G AN (55,942) —
Increase in trade and other payables and accruals e B 5 RR 5 I Bt e 3R IE
VA B JE &R SR8 10,363 2,957
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS AND REEEXBZRER
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEEFZHZHEFE 88,121 203,945
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREEY
Consideration received for disposal of subsidiaries HEWBARMESZRE — 39,750
Interest received 2F A 3,845 6,335
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BMELH (180) (288)
Additions of exploration and evaluation assets AREMRLAGHEE (4,395) (4,604)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES ~ (FE)RB#REFHZ
BeFH (730) 41,193
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEY
Advance from intermediate holding company REFNERAR BN 286 1,302
Advance from a fellow subsidiary rKE—BRFZE
B AR Z 2K 24 —
Redemption of convertible notes B O R % (414,000) —
Interest paid EFE (1,883) (8,280)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES RERMEEHZHESFH (415,573) (6,978)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND BeRBEEFEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS (R D) ¥ 0% 48 (328,182) 238,160
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT FORWARD EHIIR& R L ZEMY 621,879 383,714
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES SEEXSH2RE 201 5
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED FORWARD, & RBEEZEEBMEE »
represented by bank balances and cash BIRITHE B RIRSHK 293,898 621,879

- -
Y A




GENERAL

CNNC International Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated

as an exempted company with limited liability in the Cayman
Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and its
shares have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company’s immediate holding company is CNNC Overseas
Uranium Holding Limited (“CNNC Overseas”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Company’s intermediate
holding company and ultimate holding company is China
Uranium Corporation Limited and # [ #% T % % @ 2 7] (China
National Nuclear Corporation “CNNC”), a state-owned entity in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), respectively.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section of the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is United States dollars
("US$"). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") for the convenience of the
shareholders, as the Company is listed in Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries

(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) are

exploration and trading of mineral properties.

Consolidated Financial Statements
ecember, 2013 BE2E-_ZE—=%+-_A=+—HItEE
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e Consolidated Financial Statements
ded 31st December, 2013 HE_-_ZT—=F+_-_A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first

time, the following new and revised Hong Kong Accounting

Standards (“HKAS(s)”), Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS(s)”), amendments and interpretations (“HK(IFRC) —
Int”) (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “new and revised
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 20

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 Cycle

Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Consolidated Financial
Statements, Joint
Arrangements and Disclosure
of Interests in Other Entities:
Transition Guidance

Consolidated Financial
Statements

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

Fair Value Measurement

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 ¥ 35 MT 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

2. 2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Items
of Other Comprehensive Income”

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
“Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income”.
Upon the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1, the
Group’s ‘statement of comprehensive income’ is renamed
as the ’‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income’. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to
present profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
either a single statement or in two separate but consecutive
statements. Furthermore, the amendments to HKAS 1 require
additional disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive
income section such that items of other comprehensive income
are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items that
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive
income is required to be allocated on the same basis — the
amendments do not change the option to present items of
other comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax.
The amendments have been applied retrospectively, and hence
the presentation of items of other comprehensive income
has been modified to reflect the changes. Other than the
above mentioned presentation changes, the application of the
amendments to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit
or loss, other comprehensive income and total comprehensive

income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 & 35 MT 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 HIZE =T — =+ - A=+ —-HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
and amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time the
package of five standards on consolidation, joint arrangements,
associates and disclosures comprising HKFRS 10 “Consolidated
Financial Statements”, HKFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”, HKFRS
12 "Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities”, HKAS 27 (as revised
in 2011) “Separate Financial Statements” and HKAS 28 (as
revised in 2011) “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures”,
together with the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 regarding transitional guidance. HKAS 27 (as revised
in 2011) is not applicable to the Group as it deals only with
separate financial statements.

The impact of the application of these standards is set out
below.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements” that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC) Int — 12 “Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities”. HKFRS 10 changes the definition of
control such that an investor has control over an investee when
a) it has power over the investee, b) it is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and ¢)
has the ability to use its power to affect its returns. All three of
these criteria must be met for an investor to have control over
an investee. Previously, control was defined as the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. Additional guidance has been
included in HKFRS 10 to explain when an investor has control
over an investee.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 ¥ 35 MT 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
and amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 10 (continued)

As a result of adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group has changes
its accounting policy with respect to determining whether it has
control over its investee. The adoption does not change any of
the control conclusions reached by the Group in respect of its
investees.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in Joint Ventures”, and
the guidance contained in a related interpretation, HK(SIC) —
Int13 “Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary Contributions
by Venturers”, has been incorporated in HKAS 28 (as revised in
2011). HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint arrangement of which
two or more parties have joint control should be classified
and accounted for. Under HKFRS 11, there are only two types
of joint arrangements — joint operations and joint ventures.
The classification of joint arrangements under HKFRS 11 is
determined based on the rights and obligations of parties to
the joint arrangements by considering the structure, the legal
form of the arrangements, the contractual terms agreed by the
parties to the arrangement, and, when relevant, other facts
and circumstances. A joint operation is a joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
(i.e. joint operators) have rights to the assets, and obligations
for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A joint venture is
a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control
of the arrangement (i.e. joint venturers) have rights to the net
assets of the arrangement. Previously, HKAS 31 contemplated
three types of joint arrangements — jointly controlled entities,
jointly controlled operations and jointly controlled assets. The
classification of joint arrangements under HKAS 31 was primarily
determined based on the legal form of the arrangement (e.g. a
joint arrangement that was established through a separate entity
was accounted for as a jointly controlled entity).

FERMET REETEAN
B EEL

FRSEANR Be®RH B
BATIRBEBZHT REMEET
ZAl UREEMBREER
E105% - HEEMBRERERSE
NMEREFEEMBREENE12

R ZIERT A )
JE & BB 75 3R & 2ER E 109
ZEEm

R KA E S MR EERF105
AEBEENERETEURRET
EERBEEEHRZEHERER - BWZ
R B B A BB EWIRE T
EH EE RIS

JEH & B EERFE
ZEE

BEAUBREENENFRIRRTES
CETEREIFINaE ¥ ER ]
mEs N —BRERE &S (BEBKR
BLEe) — 2EFI3RIXREZEHE
B AP ZIEEETE DB 2
BEMAT B ERE228HR(R_F—
—FRIERT) - BAEMBHREERFEN
SRETRA R AR 5 Bk % 5 i B B4 ) 4
JHBAETHENASERARE - BRI
BEAVBRELENENG  BAELH
EDEME — AEXEBREEDRE -
EAVBREENENRHB S LHE
COBEDNREBZELTEZ2ERE &
EER  RHEZIHEZEHBERK
(e EMmEERBERE  EREH
ABLREZFZENEREAMET - &
BERE—BHBATY HLTHHEER
HEZEHE ST EEEB LB
BEZERLHZCEELHE B ERE
ET -2 EAE—BEBATH Y
THEESRRERNEZ ST (AIEE D
¥F)ERZERLTHZEEFE - B
*x BAECHENENRE_EHS
T — HEEHEEE - LRI H XS
MEREHEE - BB &R FH31
S AL BEEERZLH
ZETERRA (B 0E BB BT
AL EAERIERERE) ME

—

IE °

41



42

CNNC International Limited Annual Report 2013

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 & 35 MT 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 HIZE =T — =+ - A=+ —-HILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
and amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11 (continued)

The initial and subsequent accounting of joint ventures and
joint operations is different. Investments in joint ventures
are accounted for using the equity method (proportionate
consolidation is no longer allowed). Investments in joint
operations are accounted for such that each joint operator
recognises its assets (including its share of any assets jointly
held), its liabilities (including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly), its revenue (including its share of revenue from the sale
of the output by the joint operation) and its expenses (including
its share of any expenses incurred jointly). Each joint operator
accounts for the assets and liabilities, as well as revenues
and expenses, relating to its interest in the joint operation in
accordance with the applicable standards.

The Group reviewed and assessed the classification of the
Group's investment in the joint arrangement in XXEM LLC
("XXEM") in accordance with the requirements of HKFRS
11. Even XXEM is structured as a separate legal entity, the
Group considered the other facts and circumstances based on
the guidance in HKFRS 11 and concluded that the Group’s
investment in XXEM, which was previously classified as a jointly
controlled entity under HKAS 31, should be classified as a joint
operation under HKFRS 11.

The activities of XXEM are primarily designed for the provision of
power support to the Group and the joint venture parties of the
joint arrangement (collectively the “Joint Arrangement Parties”)
which indicates that the Joint Arrangement Parties have rights to
substantially all the economic benefits of the assets of the joint
arrangement. The obligation of the Joint Arrangement Parties to
purchase all the outputs produced by XXEM reflects the exclusive
dependence of XXEM upon the Joint Arrangement Parties for
the generation of cash flows and thus, the Joint Arrangement
Parties have an obligation to fund the settlement of the liabilities
of XXEM. In addition, based on the joint arrangement, XXEM is
restricted to sell its outputs to third parties and thus the Joint
Arrangement Parties can also ensure their access to the outputs
provided by the joint arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 ¥ 35 MT 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
and amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 11 (continued)

The adoption of HKFRS 11 has no material impact to the
consolidated financial statements.

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12

HKFRS 12
entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,

is a disclosure standard and is applicable to
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general,
the application of HKFRS 12 has resulted in more extensive
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements (see notes
15 and 16).

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions?

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets'

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting'

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2010-2012 Cycle*

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2011-2013 Cycle?
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2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STAN DA R DS (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
and amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and

H KFRS 12 (Continued)

Impact of the application of HKFRS 12 (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7
and HKFRS 9

Disclosures?

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Mandatory Effective Date of
HKFRS 9 and Transition

Investment Entities'

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies'

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2014.

3 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be determined when

the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2014, with limited
exceptions.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2016.

The directors anticipate that the application of the new and

revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and

the financial position of the Groups.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 ¥ 35 MT 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange of goods and
services.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the

Company:
. has power over the investee;
o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not they control an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interest in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associate is incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion thereof,
is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
The financial statements of associate
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform

Discontinued Operations”.

accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the
Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group's
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within
the carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which

the investment is acquired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 ¥ 35 MT 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interest in an associate (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in an associate. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable amount
(higher of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal)
with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group's consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of interests in the associate that are not related
to the Group.

Interest in a joint operation

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the joint
arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint
operation, the Group as a joint operator recognises in relation
to its interest in a joint operation:

o its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

o its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly;

o its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising

from the joint operation;

o its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by

the joint operation; and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 & 35 MT 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 HIZE =T — =+ - A=+ —-HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Interest in a joint operation (continued)

o its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred
jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in accordance
with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets, liabilities,
revenues and expenses.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of returns and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are
delivered and title has been passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect

of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 ¥ 35 MT 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continved)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost on
initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, exploration
and evaluation assets are stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

Exploration and evaluation assets include the cost of exploration
rights and the expenditure incurred in the search for natural
resources as well as the determination of the technical feasibility
and commercial viability of extracting those resources.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability of
extracting natural resources become demonstrable, previously
recognised exploration and evaluation assets are reclassified as
either intangible assets or property, plant and equipment. These
assets are assessed for impairment before reclassification, and
any impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases, in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element of
the lease at the inception of the lease.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant
and equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary

items, and on the re-translation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group
(i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each
reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated at
the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other

comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the

heading of translation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 ¥ 35 MT 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint operation
that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as reported
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 & 35 MT 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 HIZE =T — =+ - A=+ —-HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
an associate, and interest in a joint operation, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that
it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 ¥ 35 MT 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of

initial recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, amount due from an
associate and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of

financial assets below).

3.

BEB R

#45

T 4 R R B TR 8 2 B E
B o AL PR E o AR
B AT 2 B B 1T
W2 R AR -

tRIA
TREERTRABNEEEENR
TREAMNBRXZANTRELREMB

AR ERR

TREERSRABVNS R FER
E-WBRETEHREERESRAR
(BAFEAANEGZZEREER SR
BERINZEREBERZRARN S
BABFAZREEHERABZR
FEKEEFMEG(RERBRAME)

ETHEE
AEBZSREESRER KWK
Ho SERARSREEZHARA
B R B4 T R BRE -

BB

BEREMBENHESREE 2K HIH
RARREBREOENBRAZT
& o BERAI & TH R F) IR B 3R B A 5T

AREBRS WA (BRBEXEREN XA
SRBEOZENXUERZHEER -
RHRAREMGERTE)REHE
EZEHRFHL(MEE) REHER
MR EREFE LR -

MBEWMATIRERMNBELER -

B R E Y HE

ERREWHKIE RSB RIERT IS M
FZ.EYT#EH&AZ?FMGE‘:E%E
BE - VILHRR  ERRERKEA
(BERKE RS &Ef@rﬂﬂl % 18 LA

MRTTHEB IR S) HRRBERN X
AT E 2 S AR E AT 2 38 Bl R (B
EBERIR(ATXeREERE S
Eﬁl%) 2

53



54

CNNC International Limited Annual Report 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continved)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of the reporting period. Loans and receivables are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition, the estimated future cash flows have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments and observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

The amount of impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 ¥ 35 MT 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continvea)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial labilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and
amounts due to intermediate holding company and a fellow
subsidiary are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 & 35 MT 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 HIZE =T — =+ - A=+ —-HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continved)

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Group that contain both
the liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount
of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is classified as an equity
instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. The difference between the gross proceeds of
the issue of the convertible notes and the fair value assigned to
the liability component, representing the conversion option for
the holder to convert the notes into equity, is included in equity
(convertible notes equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the convertible
notes is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. The equity component, representing the option to
convert the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible notes equity reserve until the
embedded option is exercised in which case the balance stated
in convertible notes equity reserve will be transferred to share
premium. Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry
date, the balance stated in convertible notes equity reserve will
be released to accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible notes
are allocated to the liability and conversion option components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the conversion option components are charged
directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of the liability
portion and amortised over the period of the convertible notes

using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 ¥ 35 MT 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial instruments (continvea)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognised as income immediately.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Exploration and evaluation assets
The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation assets
is reviewed annually and adjusted for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” whenever one of the
following events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable (the list is not
exhaustive):

o the period for which the Group has the right to explore
in the specific area has expired during the period or
will expire in the near future, and is not expected to be
renewed;

o substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of mineral resources in the specific area is
neither budgeted nor planned;

o exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources in the
specific area have not led to the discovery of commercially
viable quantities of mineral resources and the Group has
decided to discontinue such activities in the specific area;
or

. sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a
development in the specific area is likely to proceed,
the carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation
asset is unlikely to be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the

carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %% & B4 75 3% 2= M 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. HFTTFHBPAERERFAEZ

UNCERTAINTY AND JUDGEMENT

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the key estimation and assumptions concerning
the future that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets within the next
financial year and critical judgements that the directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts

recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 & 35 MT 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 HIZE =T — =+ - A=+ —-HILFE

4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND JUDGEMENT (continves)
Estimated impairment on exploration and
evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets are assessed for impairment
when facts and circumstances suggest that the carrying amount
may exceed the recoverable amount. As detailed in note 14,
the Group owns a number of exploration licenses included in
exploration and evaluation assets of approximately HK$199
million in Mongolia for uranium mining which are subject to
the Mongolian’s Law on Nuclear Energy and Mongolia’s Law
on Implementing Procedures of the Law on Nuclear Energy
(collectively referred to as the “New Laws”). Under the New
Laws, the People of Mongolia (the “Mongolia State”) has right
to take ownership without payments of either not less than 51%
of the equity interest in the Group’s Mongolia subsidiaries if the
Mongolia State’s funding was used to determine the resource
during exploration, or not less than 34% of the equity interest in
the Group’s Mongolia subsidiaries if the Mongolia State’s funding
was not used to determine the resource during exploration. The
Group commenced negotiating with the relevant Mongolian
authorities in respect of the implementation of the New Laws
from 2010 and consensus has been reached between the Group
and the relevant Mongolian authorities that a joint venture
will be established for holding the Group’s mining licenses,
which are currently under application, with the Mongolia State
holding 51% of the equity interest of the joint venture. Upon
the establishing of the joint venture, the Group’s mining licenses
together with the carrying amount of the Group’s exploration
and evaluation assets will be transferred to the joint venture at
fair value which will be determined by an independent valuer and
by way of a shareholder loan. However, the timing of obtaining
the mining licenses is uncertain and if the application of the
mining licenses is not approved due to the New Laws or if the
fair value of the assets determined by the independent valuer
is less than the carrying amount of the Group’s exploration and
evaluation assets upon the transfer, the Group might incur a
significant impairment loss on the exploration and evaluation

assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 ¥ 35 MT 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY AND JUDGEMENT (continves)
Estimated impairment on exploration and
evaluation assets (continved)

The directors of the Company exercise their judgment in
estimating the recoverable amount with reference to recent
negotiation and consensus with the Mongolian authorities and
the recent legal advice and are confident that the Group’s
interest in the exploration and evaluation assets will not be
materially affected. In addition, the directors of the Company
exercise their judgment in estimating the recoverable amount of
exploration and evaluation assets with reference to a discounted
cash flow analysis, whereas the possible outcomes of the New
Laws were assessed. Where the recoverable amount is less than
expected by the directors, a material impairment loss may arise.

Estimated impairment on interest in an
associate

Impairment assessment is performed when indicators exist that
the carrying amount of the investment in an associate disclosed
in note 15 may not be recoverable. The recoverable amount is
measured at the higher of the fair value less cost to sell, which
is based on the best estimate of management of the Group
on the fair value of the associate that would be achieved in a
sale transaction of those investment, and value in use. Where
the recoverable amount is less than the corresponding carrying
amount, a material impairment loss may arise.

Changes to the assumptions underlying the assessment of the
recoverable value may result in recognition of impairment losses,
such factors may include the future cash flows expected to
arise from the mining activities, further delays, increases in the
total forecast cost of planned projects or negative outcomes to
exploration activities, in which the exploration and evaluation
expenditures are considered likely to be recoverable through
future extraction activity or sale where the exploration activities
have not reached a stage which permits a reasonable assessment
of the existence of reserves.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the trading income received or receivable for

uranium sold by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 & 35 MT 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 HIZE =T — =+ - A=+ —-HILFE

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. S EEH
Information reported to the Group's executive directors, being BETEIRD B Ko 28 & M
the chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resources FELERARABIREENTES)
allocation and assessment of segment performance focuses on EWMER FEEHPELREEZE
types of goods or services delivered or provided. The Group me iR 2 R R - NEE B AT
currently organises its operations into two operating divisions, HEEBE O RAMEZERNRD  TREK
which also represent the operating segments of the Group for AEERMBREMTE D 2EED
financial reporting purposes, namely trading of mineral property B 2B BREEREY AR BER R LS
and exploration and trading of mineral properties. They represent BEDE BHEIARKAEHRSE
two major lines of business engaged by the Group. The Group's ZMEEERTNEY - AEEREE
operating and reportable segments under HKFRS 8 are as BB HREERERN 2 EERERD
follows: BT
. Trading of mineral property — trading of uranium . KEBEYSE — B E
. Exploration and trading of mineral properties — exploration . BRREEBREYE — KRR
and trading of uranium B & i
The following is an analysis for the Group’s results regarding N5 B AN E T DATE 5F 5 8 0 BE 3R
the reportable and operating segments for the current and prior EEDEEB 2 ATWT
years:
Year ended 31st December, 2013 8FE-_F—=F+=-R=+-—
BiEEE
Exploration
Trading of and trading
mineral of mineral
property properties Consolidated
g BhiR &
BEHE CEBREDE =&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BRI
Segment revenue 7 A 1,168,097 — 1,168,097
Segment profit (loss) 7 &b Al (&5 18) 141,897 (125,804) 16,093
Unallocated other income and gains & % i 2
Hab g A Rz 3,845
Central administration costs HR R TT R AR (16,594)
Effective interest expenses on AR F 15
convertible notes EBREMNERX (8,093)
Loss before taxation B %4 A &S 18 (4,749)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B 7% ¥R 2% M 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continved) 6. 5 EBE Elow
Year ended 31st December, 2012 BFE-F——F+=-A=+-—
Bl EE
Exploration
Trading of and trading
mineral of mineral
property properties  Consolidated
ey R R
BEVME CEEEDE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Segment revenue 7 BB U A 417,442 — 417,442
Segment profit (loss) 7 8 A (B 18) 30,807 (18,730) 12,077
Unallocated other income and gains &% i 2
H At Yo A B Wi =5 6,335
Central administration costs R R 1T IR RK AR (9,132)
Effective interest expenses on AR E R
convertible notes BEEMNERX (32,464)
Loss before taxation B %% A B 18 (23,184)
The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the RO BBt HRERAER I
same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment profit (loss) IR o H ;R F (EE) /S B
represents the profit earned (loss incurred) from the segment BMEUEF (FTEEER) T8EMNB
without allocation of interest income, central administration costs WA FRITHEKARABREERE
and effective interest expenses on convertible notes. This is the BRERIZHE - IR ETER
measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for the ARERERBAEMAEEZLEREA

purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment. EWMITFEER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B 7% ¥R 2% M 5% (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 HIZE =T — =+ - A=+ —-HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continved) 6. PEEE

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities

by reportable segment:

SHEERERE
REBEERABRERD B2 DI
m

2013 2012
—g-=f5 —E_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE
— Trading of mineral property — REREYE 154,756 102,802
— Exploration and trading of mineral — WEREREE
properties BEYF 549,535 672,447
704,291 775,249
Unallocated assets DB E 290,279 620,350
Consolidated assets HEAE 994,570 1,395,599
LIABILITIES BfR
Segment liabilities S EEE
— Trading of mineral property — KREBEYE 10,019 3,032
— Exploration and trading of mineral — BB
properties BEWME 14,646 11,198
24,665 14,230
Unallocated liabilities DB E 22,934 416,622
Consolidated liabilities = 47,599 430,852

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and

allocating resources:

o Segment assets include property, plant and equipment,

exploration and evaluation assets, interest in an associate,

inventories, trade and other receivables, amount due from
an associate and bank balances and cash which are directly
attributable to the relevant reportable segment.

o Segment liabilities include trade and other payables and

accruals, amount due to intermediate holding company

and amount due to a fellow subsidiary which are directly

attributable to the relevant reportable segment.

HRERDBRARDEERME

s INIHWEEBRRHEBEERSHNE
BERIGZOE BELEE 8
BREFHAEEE REBERRZE
#®FE RBREZIRALEM
FEMFRIR - 8 W E AR BRIA A
RRITHBREAS -

s DNHAEEEMEBE®RYMEE
B2 ENEZ R EMER
IR AR - AP

AR B FRIA A K JE AN — R & &
(N=PNCIR/ QLI
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 ¥ 35 MT 3T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continved) 6. PEEE
Other segment information Hith5r Ip & #
2013
—E—=%F
Exploration

Trading of and trading

mineral of mineral
property properties Unallocated Total

HE HRRESE
REME BWEDE x5 B #st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EBETRE EETR EETRT B8 TR

Amounts included in the FESHEREN Y HE

measure of segment results ~ EFFTAZ S E:

or segment assets:
Addition to non-current assets R E IR B & & — 4,572 3 4,575
Depreciation of property, ME BEREZHZ

plant and equipment e — (4,396) (236) (4,632)
Share of loss of an associate 9 {5 Eft & N &) E 18 — (125,324) — (125,324)
Interest in an associate NNl — 316,077 — 316,077

2012
—EF—-F
Exploration

Trading of and trading

mineral  of mineral

property  properties  Unallocated Total
BEWR BEWXE Pzl it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT T AB¥TR BT T BB T

Amounts included in the FrED A EE K

measure of segment results DEEERFTALZ

or segment assets: Gkl
Addition to non-current assets KB IETTENE E — 4,604 288 4,892
Depreciation of property, plant % - E &

and equipment REZE — (2,813) (216) (3,029)
Impairment loss recognised on &t B & &

exploration and evaluation HHEERRZ

assets 8 & B — (10,462) — (10,462)
Loss on written off of property, #ZE# % « K=&

plant and equipment B Sk — — (2) (2)
Share of loss of an associate 2 {hEf & R A]E 18 = (6,870) = (6,870)

Interest in an associate L RN T — 440,877 — 440,877
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %z & B4 75 3% 2= M 5 (continuea #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ —-HLEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION continved) 6. SEBEF
Geographical information E &
The revenue by geographical market (irrespective of the origin of REPAEMEE H 2 ETS (TH
the goods) based on the location of the customers are detailed EmARRM) WA @ T
below:
Revenue
[N
2013 2012
—g-=%5 —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Republic of Niger JEBR 1,168,097 —
United States of America =35 — 417,442
1,168,097 417,442
The Group’s operation is principally located in the Mongolia AEFBXTEAFTHEGEMER)RE
State (country of domicile) and the Republic of Niger. Information HRZEE AEERIETHEE 2
about the Group’s non-current assets by geographical location REIDCEEEMFENNNT:

of the assets is detailed below:

Non-current assets

REEE
2013 2012
—E-=%5 —E—_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT T
Republic of Niger iA=L 316,077 440,877
Mongolia State (country of domicile) SHBEGEMER) 225,271 224,989
Hong Kong B 357 584
541,705 666,450

7. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 7. Hitl A\ Rz
2013 2012
—E-=% —E—C_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T

Included in other income and gains are the  HUx A MUz E
following: BREATEE:

Interest income FEKA 3,845 6,335
Net exchange gain PE H Uy 2 % B 4,350 3,269
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 ¥ 35 MT 3T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

8. EERESIE

ENHENTEESRITHAH 2

8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors and

the chief executive were as follows: Cap U NE
Retirement
Directors’  Salaries and benefit scheme
fee allowances  contributions Total
BHRER
EEHE HeRER sHEI# R @at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT T BETT BETR
For the year ended BE-F—-=%
31st December, 2013 +-HA=+—-BLEE
Executive directors: HITES:
Ms. Wang Ying (appointed on ITRZT(RZT—=F
1st April, 2013) MA—REZE)
(Note (i) (Ciga0) 13 324 16 453
Mr. Zhang Hongging (resigned on RAERE(R_Z—=F
31st December, 2013) +-A=+—HET)
(Note (i) (CiEa0) 75 348 17 440
Mr. Xu Hongchao (resigned on HHBEE(RZT—=F
1st April, 2013) (Note (i)) mA—BEE) (K FE>) 38 174 8 220
Non-executive directors: FHMITES:
Mr. Cai Xifu (Note (i) 25 T E(HTREG) 200 — — 200
Mr. Xu Shouyi BEFERLE 150 — — 150
Independent non-executive directors: BAUHTES:
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry REMEE 200 — — 200
Mr. Cui Liguo EMBE LA 200 — — 200
Mr. Zhang Lei RERE 150 — — 150
1,126 846 41 2,013
For the year ended BE-_F—-&
31st December, 2012 +-HA=+—-BLEE
Executive directors: BITES:
Mr. Zhang Hongging (appointed on RABERE(R=ZT—Z=F
1st September, 2012) hWE—BEZA) 50 267 — 317
Mr. Xu Hongchao FTALEB A 150 700 35 885
Mr. Han Ruiping (resigned on BhTEERZZ—=F
1st September, 2012) NE—BET) 100 533 26 659
Non-executive directors: FHITES:
Mr. Cai Xifu (Note (i) 8% k4 () 200 — — 200
Mr. Xu Shouyi BRTELE 150 — — 150
Independent non-executive directors: BUHTES:
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry REBESE 200 — — 200
Mr. Cui Liguo BFIE £ 200 = — 200
Mr. Zhang Lei RERE 150 — — 150
1,200 1,500 61 2,761
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 & 35 MT 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 HIZE =T — =+ - A=+ —-HILFE

8.

8. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Mr. Zhang Hongqging was also the Chief Executive of the
Company until he resigned on 31st December, 2013 and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered
by him as the Chief Executive. Ms. Wang Ying is acting as the
Chief Executive since the resignation of Mr. Zhang.

Note:

(i) The director’s fee for Ms. Wang Ying, Mr. Zhang Hongging , Mr. Xu Hongchao and
Mr. Cai Xifu in 2013 are payable to CNNC Overseas by the Company.

(i) The director’s fee for Mr. Cai Xifu in 2012 was payable to CNNC Overseas by the
Company.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, one individual (2012: two individuals) was a director of
the Company whose emoluments are included in the disclosure
set out above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2012:
three) individuals were as follows:

EEREEME o

RABFRENMRARBTRAR(EE
BR-_F—=F+_A=1+—H&ES
) ®EXFEBER M BERE
RITBBHEMERRBEHE - TR
LTBERELEBTRETITRAE -

e

0  ERLZT RABALE FOBEERESE
GECE-SEZEFHEEAAARNLMNTE
B «

(i) EREEE-T-—FrFEFALEEALAAY
1 F o 4 -

AEBEZRAEERTMHALF  —F
(ZE—ZF - WMBATRARAE
£ OHEZMEHA LR ZFE -
BTIOZ(ZE——F - =Z)A L2
(N

2013 2012
—E—=% —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Salaries and other benefits B I E At 48 A 2,612 2,749
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RAKTE AT 814 3 61 47
2,673 2,796
2013 2012
—F-=%5 —E—_fF
No. of No. of
employee employee
EEAH EE AH
Emoluments of the employees were within the 18 & Bl & /" F
following bands: TE AR
Nil to HK$1,000,000 L Z 7 #1,000,0007T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 75 11,000,001 &8
1,500,0007¢ 1 —

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the five highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has waived
any emoluments during the year.

FR -AEBEYEREIMNESFHOS
RRFMALIINEMNMES  ESF
EMAREEBSIMARNEE R Z S
SBEREE BEESISNFAREL
g -




—T-=f5R szEEERA7| 69

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B 7% ¥R 2% M 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9. BRBIAIESE
2013 2012
—F-=5 —E—_fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRI BT T
Loss before taxation has been arrived at after B i Bl /& 18 4 90 B
charging (crediting): GTA)TH&EIE:
Directors’ remuneration (see note 8) E=WME (RIS 2,013 2,761
Other staff costs Hih 8 IR A 4,541 6,534
Retirement benefit schemes contributions RAOKTE AT &4 3K
(see note 31) (R M sE31) 101 180
Total staff costs BT AL 6,655 9,475
Less: Amount capitalised in exploration and & : B R EARE B 1FE K&
evaluation assets FEEEZEE (1,055) (1,460)
5,600 8,015
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% - i B &
REBZITE 4,632 4,192
Less: Amount capitalised in exploration and & : B R EARE B IFE K
evaluation assets HEEECSE — (1,163)
4,632 3,029
Auditors’ remuneration = A B & 1,783 1,633
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense R AR X 217 & W A& 1,024,940 379,743
Loss on written off of property, ZHEME  BER
plant and equipment Btz EE — 2

Operating lease charges on land and buildings =+ 3 & 1 F ~
REHEER 3,648 2,493
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dated Financial Statements %% & B/ 1% ¥k 2% B 5% (continued )

10. TAXATION 10. H 18
2013 2012
—Eg-=f5 —E——fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Current tax B AR 75 18

— PRC enterprise income tax — PR EMESH 14,209 4,978

Deferred tax (note 24) iR XE B 18 (Y 7524)
Current year KEFE (345) (2,024)
13,864 2,954

Under the Law of People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the "“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate for foreign enterprises is 25% from 1st
January, 2008 onwards.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the group entities incurred

tax losses for both years.

RIBPEARKMBEEEMRFHE (TR
EMBBEADRERMEHAE MK
- B=TTNF-A—BREBRI
BRROMER25% -

W E A [Z 2 & B 15 B iR il 5T R B
i A PA16.5% 2 B R 5T & o

HREEERAMBEFESELERD
B SRGAMBRRLEFELE
BAEHEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B 7% ¥R 2% M 5 (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

10. TAXATION (Continued) 10. *HIE(/%?)
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the loss before AEERERGEERREMEEE
taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and HEFTHRRATEEEERENT

other comprehensive income as follows:

2013 2012
—g-=f5 —E_F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRI BT T
Loss before taxation B i A1 B 18 (4,749) (23,184)
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% 1% %& i& 18 F £16.5%
AEZHIE (784) (3,825)
Tax effect of share of loss of an associate EEBE RABRZ
M E & 20,678 1,134
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BARB WA 2
purpose A (13,472) (1,997)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax -~ 8] 1% B 52 2§ 7%
purpose a8 3,462 3,124
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERBIBBE 2B
TE — 904
Tax effect of different tax rate of subsidiary KR HEEZENE QG 2
operating in PRC TRMEF B E 4,846 1,692
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses previously B/ R i@ £ K 5 22 5 1B /&
not recognised BB e (823) —
Tax effect of reversing deferred tax asset BENBAFE®RZ
recognised in prior years ELERIRE E 2B
TE — 1,930
Others Hfth (43) (8)

Taxation for the year REFEBIE 13,864 2,954
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the Consolidated Financial Statements

DIVIDENDS

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed during the current
and prior years. The directors have determined that no dividend
will be paid in respect of the year ended 31st December, 2013.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

loss per share

following data:

1.

12.

/2\"/11/5\ Eﬁ%i& i% Bﬁ I%E\ (continued #&)
ended 31st December, 2013 B E-—ZT —=+_-_A=+—HILFEE

fz B
RAFERBEFEABERN &
REBRERE - EEERETEHRE
E-T-ZH+ A=t -HLFEK
B e

BREE
AL BN 1 B A 5
BT IR0 T 7 BB A

2013 2012
—F-=% —E_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EBTR BT T
Loss for the year attributable to owners VNN SN

of the Company iR FANEE (18,613) (26,138)
2013 2012
—E—=5 —E——F

Number of ordinary shares for the purposes T2 & I% £ 7K | # &
of basic and diluted loss per share (=gl s = 489,168,308 489,168,308

The above computation of diluted loss per share for both years
does not assume the conversion of the Group's convertible notes
as the conversion of the convertible notes would result in a

decrease in loss per share.

MRABMASE A BRRERATEHR
BREBRD @A LHAEMEFE
ZERBEEBEERTERRILBEH
AmRER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 ¥ 35 MT 3T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. 9% - BEREH

Plant and

machinery Furniture

Leasehold Mining and other and Motor
improvements  structure equipment fixtures vehicles Total
:9=9:3" £ 5 &
HEMERE BESHE LUREMGRE KB RE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETIL BETL BT BT BETT BETR

cosT P

At 1st January, 2012 R-ZE——%#—F—8 346 4,854 46,237 4,132 3,840 59,409
Exchange realignment & 5 A — (10) (94) (7) (6) (117)
Additions NE — — — 288 — 288
Written-off 88 (346) — — (4) (1,118) (1,468)
At 31st December, 2012 R-Z——F+=A=+—A — 4,844 46,143 4,409 2,716 58,112
Exchange realignment & 5% A — 3 22 9 1 35
Additions RE — — 166 14 — 180
At 31st December, 2013 R-Z—=%#+=BA=+—8 — 4,847 46,331 4,432 2,717 58,327
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT ERRIE

At 1st January, 2012 R-—ZT——%—A—8” 346 815 18,486 2,561 1,728 23,936
Exchange realignment BN AR — (2) (41) (5) (2) (50)
Provided for the year FERE — 220 3,359 419 194 4,192
Eliminated on written-off 6 B 8 (346) — — (2) (1,118) (1,466)
At 31st December, 2012 R-ZE—=—#+=-A=+—A — 1,033 21,804 2,973 802 26,612
Exchange realignment [E 3 38 8 — 1 " 3 — 15
Provided for the year FERE — 127 4,099 273 133 4,632
At 31st December, 2013 RZE—-=%+=-A=+—8 — 1,161 25,914 3,249 935 31,259
CARRYING VALUES BRE

At 31st December, 2013 W-ZE—-=F+-"A=+—~8 — 3,686 20,417 1,183 1,782 27,068
At 31st December, 2012 R-E——#+-B=+—A — 3,811 24,339 1,436 1,914 31,500
The above items of property, plant and equipment are FiaimE BMERZEER DZAM
depreciated over their estimated useful lives, after taking into St AF A R EGEFI R (E
account of their estimated residual value, on a straight line basis B WERBERUTFEFERE:

at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold improvements Over the term of the leases, or HEWHEEE MHEFHHSF AR
5 years, whichever is the shorter MERE)
Mining structure 20 to 40 years i [ 45 1 20F40%F
Plant and machinery and 6%-20% B RHEE A 6%-20%
other equipment N EAth 52
Furniture and fixtures 18%-33% RERREE 18%-33%

Motor vehicles 18%—25% "RE 18%—25%
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14. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

Consolidated Financial Statements 42 & B 75 R 35 M 5T (continued )
ed 31st December, 2013 BEZE-_ZT — =€+ _-_A=+—RHItEE

14. HERFHEE

HK$'000

BT T
COST R A
At 1st January, 2012 R-ZEBE——FE—H—H 199,170
Additions NE 5,767
Impairment losses recognised EHERMEEE (10,462)
Exchange realignment [ 5 5 & (402)
At 31st December, 2012 R-E-——H+-A=+—H 194,073
Additions NE 4,395
Exchange realignment PE W #E 92
At 31st December, 2013 R-ZT—=F+_"A=+—~H 198,560

The Group's exploration and evaluation assets were mainly
arising from the acquisition of Western Prospector Group Ltd.
("Western Prospector”) (together with its subsidiaries known
as “Western Prospector Group”) during the year ended 31st
December, 2009.

On 15th August, 2009, the New Laws came into force. Under
the New Laws, the Mongolia State has the right to take
ownership without payment of either not less than 51% of
the equity interest in the Group’s Mongolian subsidiaries if the
Mongolia State’s funding was used to determine the resource
during exploration, or not less than 34% of the equity interest
in the Mongolian subsidiaries if the Mongolia State’s funding

was not used to determine the resource during exploration.

REBZHERFHEEETZHRE
EETNFTA=T—HILEFEK
8% Western Prospector Group Ltd. ([ 78
HBARDCEREMBARGBIEIRQ
AEB]MEL -

RZFTAFNATREA A E
Moo RBFOED  KAHBEBERE T
DR ER B 5T B 8 2 ) B 2 51%
(RS FRERTHARLEE S R
BR)IZITAORREEMBRBREZ
34% (R HREETPAEHARA
BHESRBER) <FAAE  MBAN

Eo
N




—z=—=g5R mrEEsRaa]| 75

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 ¥ 35 MT 3T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE
HMERFHEE

14. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS 14.

(Continued)

The directors of the Company commenced negotiating with the
relevant Mongolian authorities in respect of the implementation
of various provisions under the New Laws during the year ended
31st December, 2010. Based on management’s discussions with
the relevant Mongolian authorities and the advice from its
Mongolian legal advisers, the Group will have the right to apply
for mining licenses to mine or extract the resource identified
in the relevant areas covered by the exploration licenses. As at
31st December, 2013, included in the exploration and evaluation
assets is an amount of HK$198,560,000 (2012: HK$194,073,000)
of which the Group is currently in the progress of applying for
mining licenses to mine or extract the resources identified in
the relevant areas covered by these exploration licenses. In the
opinion of directors, there is no legal obstacle for application
of such mining licenses. During the year ended 31st December,
2012, consensus has been reached between the Company and
the relevant Mongolian authorities that a joint venture will be
established for holding the mining licences, which are currently
under application, with the Mongolia State holding 51% of the
equity interest in the joint venture. Upon the establishing of
the joint venture, the Group’s mining licenses together with the
carrying amount of the Group’s exploration and evaluation assets
will be transferred to the joint venture by way of a shareholder
loan, of which the amount will be determined by an independent
valuer. In addition, the Company has drafted the shareholders’
agreement, joint venture's agreement and memorandum and
association of the joint venture and has commenced negotiation
with the detailed terms of these documents with the relevant
Mongolian authorities and a pre-mining cooperation agreement
was signed on 26th June, 2012 to kick off the pre-mining
activities. A notice has been received in January 2014 from
the relevant Mongolian authorities which mentioned that the
joint venture would be expected to be established in 2014.
After taking into consideration of the recent negotiations and
consensus being reached with the Mongolian authorities, recent
legal advice and the discounted cash flow analysis, the directors
of the Company are confident that the Group’s interest in the
exploration and evaluation assets will not be materially affected.

During the year ended 31st December, 2012, certain exploration
licenses have expired and were not renewed as the directors
of the Company determined to cease exploration activities in
the areas covered by these exploration licenses. Accordingly, an
impairment loss of HK$10,462,000 was recognised in profit or
loss in that year.

HE_ZT—ZTFE+_A=+—HIF
ERN - ARRIEFEHEHEEZLTERM®
BERFEFATZEEXRERMAGZ - R
BEEEREBAZIERZTMEE
SHEFERZER ASBEB AR
REMRTE  EURKIERR
BN R 5T 0] 58 PR & 2 AE A Hb @ 9 BT B
FZER R_BE—=F+=-A=+
—B AEBFRMWRRTHEEFRN
B 155 #5198,560,000 (T —— 4 :
7 #194,073,0007T) 2 & E B & F IR
ETAIEE  BEUARM AR E MR
AIEATRE 2Rt E N AT 2 &
R-BEERR HEZSIHETUE
MELEEEZER -BE-T—=F
+ZA=+—RHIEFERN ARFIHEEF
BEOERCREENIEE R EE
KR ARBBIEERB AR
FOMEOTEKBEBEEELEREZ
51% ° KB &R EE - NEBE 2K
FAFRERAEEMRETGHEE 2
FEEBURRERFAEERESS
¥ ZPXELHBLEHEMETE -
foh - ARFEERBREHZE - &2
TERBURGECEMBHBERARAN
MER BHERSHERRZEXH
ZEHMERERED TR =2FT—=
FRAZT R BFTRBEMNEEHE
NFAEZHERERGE  -AEERZ
E-NFE-RAEEFEZTERTY
LB BRERAECETFHBR
ZE-MFERY c KERIPES
ERcEBEREN A  TEXE
ERRUBBERESNE  AAA
EERGEASERDELRTFFHEEY

BaBTe@XEATE -

HE-_ZT——F+-A=+—HBIEF
B -BAETHFRTIEEREM AR
RAREBEFTREFI L FBFRTIE
FIREzHEANZEBEE 25
HEFABREEE - A B
10,462,000t Z B BB EE R ZFE
ZHEEPHER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 & 35 MT 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 HIZE =T — =+ - A=+ —-HILFE

15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 15. REtE AT Z2H#E

2013 2012

—F-=% —E——fF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BRI BT T

Cost of unlisted investment FLEMHRE Z A 463,865 463,865
Share of post-acquisition losses and other FEAE W BB 12 BB &

comprehensive income Emrmmlas (147,788) (22,988)

Interest in an associate L RN - 316,077 440,877

During the year ended 31st December, 2010, the Group
acquired 37.2% equity interest in Société des Mines d'Azelik S.A.
("SOMINA") through the acquisition of a subsidiary known as
Ideal Mining Limited (“ldeal Mining”).

Details of the Group’s associate as at 31st December, 2013 and
2012 are as follows:

REBREBEE-_T—ZTFF+_A=+
—AlFEERARE—BRAER
BEARAANERBEDZWEAR
7l - YgBE Société des Mines d'Azelik
S.A. ([SOMINA) 2 37.2% IR A # 25~

R =FR-_FT——F+-_A=+
—H AEBEZBEARFBOT:

Country of
Name of registration Paid-up
associate and operation registered capital

BEATEE HMREBEZEX CHEEMRERSE

Attributable
equity interest Principal
held by the Group activity
AERE M
FEIEMRIE EEXETH

SOMINA Republic of Niger African Financial Community
Franc 500,000,000
SOMINA ERR 500,000,000

JEM = &b FL R 38 K AL

37.2% Mining

37.2% WEEFHRIEK

The summarised financial information of SOMINA is set out
below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the associate’s financial statements prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs. The associate is accounted for using
the equity method in these consolidated financial statements.

SOMINA Z B 75 & KL Z &5 a0 © BA
THBERBEDNRBES SV BRE
XERI BT 4R BB & N B B B SR R FTSIOR
B o NRNEZEFHRAVEBRERY T
FRESEBBE A ARAR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 ¥ 35 MT 3T (continued )

For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

15.

16.

17.

TRERER AR

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continuea) 5 REMEAT 2R«
2013 2012
—F—=5F —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT T
Current assets MENE E 194,994 241,214
Non-current assets FERBEE 3,945,089 4,182,371
Current liabilities mEasE (2,490,971) (2,123,031)
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (799,443) (1,115,401)
Net assets EEFE 849,669 1,185,153
Revenue A 1,543,718 231,032
Loss for the year FREE (336,892) (18,468)
Other comprehensive income for the year FREMEEEA 1,408 —
Total comprehensive expense for the year FRNEMEMA AR (335,484) (18,468)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised
in the consolidated financial statements:

FM B BERS EENGS MG mE
MRz E QAR Z REE YR
T

2013 2012
—E—=% —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT T
Net assets EEFE 849,669 1,185,153
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest 7N 5 & B 16 % B #E £ %5
Lt Bl 37.2% 37.2%
316,077 440,877
JOINT OPERATION 6. BEERH

The Group has a joint operation, XXEM. The Group has a 50%
share in the ownership of a power station in the Mongolia State.
The power station is designed for the provision of power line
support to the Group and the Joint Arrangement Parties. The
Group is entitled to 50% share of the revenue earned and bears
50% share of the joint operation’s expenses.

AREEB—BEEEBXXEM - KEEH
BAESHE —EEEM250%EEE -
ZEREREETAANEER LR LT HE
IR REEEIR - AEBE BRI
156 & E 5 P Bk B A 2 50% 7 75 B
ABEKRZ50%HAT -

INVENTORIES 17. 5&
2013 2012
—FE—=F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T
Uranium concentrates & B 98,814 =
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B 7 ¥} 2% M1 5F (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 HIZE =T — =+ - A=+ —-HILFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 18.

PREPAYMENTS
2013 2012
—E-=% —E-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Trade receivables JEUE 5Bk 3K = 102,802
Deposits paid AN 490 371
Other receivables H b & W R TIR 3,639 3,794
Prepayments T8~ 5K 18 82 303
4,211 107,270

The Group allows a credit period of 30 days to its trade
customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables

AEBRTHEZEPIBNEES -
RBERRUNBZEARASEEZINNZ

presented based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting FEWEBSERER ST WOT
period:
2013 2012
—EB—=5 —E-CF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T
0 to 30 days OHZ30H — 102,802
Before accepting any new customer, the Group will understand TEMENFTERP 2R AEEET

the potential customer’s credit quality and defines its credit
limits. Credit sales are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history. Credit limits attributed to customers are reviewed
regularly.

The directors of the Company consider that trade receivables
at the end of the reporting period which are neither past due
nor impaired are recoverable because the outstanding balance
is substantially settled subsequent to the end of the reporting
period.

At 31st December, 2013, trade and other receivables that are
denominated in Monogolian Tughrik (“MNT"), the currency other
than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities, are
HK$3,679,000 (2012: HK$3,792,000).

MEBECERPZEELARLEERER
RE AEBERAEEEERLHZ
EEEHERBEE HTEFPZEM
REW®KEMEZ -

ARBEERS  REEHRALKRS
HA K 3 R (B 2 FE U B SRR AT I -
J?IZ%@?(*BT%H??HE R R RN
THREHES -

R-F—=F+"A=1T—8 UKH

BRem(BRERDGEREEERE

5 Aagmwrz SE)DE 2 EKE S
3R Bt B W SR IR & A8 63,679,000

ﬁ(:%—:i : 75 #3,792,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 ¥ 35 MT 3T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

19.

20.

21.

AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 19.

The amount due from an associate is trading in nature. The
Group allows a credit period of 30 days and the balance is
unsecured and interest-free. The age of the balance is within 30
days.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 20.

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates which
range from 0.01% to 1.63% (2012: 0.01% to 2.1%) per annum.

Bank balances that are denominated in currencies other than
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out

FE W Bt & 22 BI R IR

U EANRABE SIS - A%
B4 F30R 25 HM - RAH A RE
WARE - EHE2EEA0AZ
A o

IMITHBERIRE
BRITEBEZENT0ERIEE(ZZT
——F:00MEE21B)ZBITMEBF
FEEFE -

WeE R

TXEHIIAEHEEEE 2
EpA

Aoz EHE5IME 2 IR1T 4

below:
Australian Canadian
dollars dollars Renminbi
HK$ ("AUD") (“CAD") MNT ("RMB") Euro
BT T AR%
fe3- ([®/xT]) (Mho3el) EH#HER TAR%]D BX T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT EETT BETT EETT BETT EETR
As at 31st December, 2013 N-_Z—=(6+-A=+—H 1,436 20 65 1,207 4,720 12
As at 31st December, 2012 W—_E——F+=-F=+—H 207,413 24 6,269 2,314 188,238 2
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 21. FE1 B 5 BR =k e H 4t FE 3
. =
ACCRUALS FRIELLREST XK

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

REBERRUNBEZARREERNZ
BNBSERFEREINWT

2013 2012

—E-=% —E—_fF

HK$'000 HK$'000

EETR BT T

Trade payables JETE 5 R 10,019 3,032
Accruals J& 5T R 3K 9,141 9,234
Other payables (note) H b S 3R0IE (B 5E) 7,640 4171

26,800 16,437
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B 7 ¥} 2% M1 5F (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 HIZE =T — =+ - A=+ —-HILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 21. FE{1 & 5 iR =X & H it FE £+
ACCRUALS (continvea) # IE D)s & BE %-I- /K #(ﬁ?}
The average credit period on purchase of goods is 120 days. BEEMFHEENRI208 - K&
The Group has financial risk management policies in place to BB MR EIEIR - AR
ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe. FIERNTRBHREERRALS -
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables at the end UTRRBREHRRZENE SRR
of the reporting period: e AT
2013 2012
—F-=% —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT T
0 to 30 days 0&30H 10,019 3,032
Trade and other payables that are denominated in currencies TXEHIAEHAEEERB  EEE
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities ok B¥EFIBE BN ESRH K E
are set out below: ftb JE {5 318
MNT HK$
EEER B
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
As at 31st December, 2013 W_E—=%+_A=1+—H 13,387 410
As at 31st December, 2012 R—E——F+=-A=+—H 3,602 498
Note: Included in other payables are HK$5,841,000 (2012: HK$2,474,000) due to the Mer: H#MENREBEMTICABREERNSEER
joint operator of the joint operation disclosed in note 16. The amount is unsecured, 2 A S E 2 5,841,000 (ZF— =& :
interest-free and no fixed term of repayment. B ¥2,474,00070) - ZERAREER 28 H

TEREEERBR -

22. AMOUNTS DUE TO INTERMEDIATE 22. EfAP A ERIRAE —
HOLDING COMPANY/A FELLOW £ % M B A5 RIR
SUBSIDIARY

ANV /NI Sl LNEIR =N
RAEAIFERERR 2B RRERE
B ZREAARE (AEBEEEER
WeEEB NI EE)HIE -

The amounts due to intermediate holding company and a fellow
subsidiary are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
The amounts are denominated in RMB, being the currency other
than the functional currency of the relevant group entities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 4% & BF 75 ¥ 35 MT 3T (continued )
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

23. CONVERTIBLE NOTES 23. R ER

On 25th March, 2010, the Company issued a 2% unsecured
convertible note to CNNC Overseas with a principal amount of
US$53,282,000 (“CN 2010") in connection with the acquisition
of Ideal Mining. CN 2010 entitles CNNC Overseas to convert
it, in whole or in part of the principal amount, into ordinary
shares of the Company at any time prior to seven business
days preceding the maturity date on 24th March, 2013, at the
conversion price of HK$9.50 per share, subject to anti-dilutive
adjustments. The number of shares to be issued upon conversion
is determined by dividing the principal amount of CN 2010 to
be converted (translated into HK$ at a fixed rate of HK$7.77 to
US$1.00) by the conversion price of HK$9.50, subject to anti-
dilutive adjustments. If CN 2010 has not been converted, it will
be redeemed at par on 24th March, 2013. At initial recognition,
the fair value of CN 2010 is estimated to be HK$413,356,000,
including the liability component of HK$340,737,000 at an
effective interest rate of 8.80% and the conversion option
amounting to HK$72,619,000 has been credited to convertible
notes equity reserve by reference to a valuation carried out on
that day by Greater China Appraisal Limited. On 24th March,
2013, CNNC Overseas did not convert any principal amount
of CN 2010 and the Company redeemed the entire principal
amount of CN 2010 at par.

The movement of the liability component of CN 2010 is set out

R-ZZE—ZTE=A=-+FHA  KAFM
HR 1% 8 B 1T AN & 853,282,000% T
2% EAR AR AT =4, (ICN 2010))
N BIRREE EREFAEMRAR
T CN 20101z BN ERR_T
—ZFZA-+WBRHAMEEE
EAURTAEHRERETRBE
ISOT KA EEH K HEBRAEAE
NAIEBR EREHEFABMLRRT
EREETETZIROBEIAET
B8 7 CN 201048 58 (VA B E E R &
k577770 1.00ZE TR & 5B ) B
950 IREEE o fWCN 2010
KFARE AR _ZT—=F=A=
THAZRABETUER - E9KRER
B CN 20107 R FEHT(HABE
413,356,0007T * B & B B ) %£8.80%
2 7 #340,737,0007C 7 BEZH 0 M
K2ZZ2ZETEBRARERETZ
A% - BEH72,619,00070 7%
BEFATBRRBREERARE - N =
T—=F=ZA=+WA ' PZREINE K
EBIACN 20102 F M AL R - AR F
REEEEICN 20102 2 AL 5 o

CN 20108 &2 2 S B H WM T

as below:

HK$'000

BT T
At 1st January, 2012 WoZE——F—F—H 383,606
Interest charged B 32,464
Interest paid B F & (8,280)
At 31st December, 2012 R-ZE——F+=-A=+—H 407,790
Interest charged FEZ N 8,093
Interest paid AT F & (1,883)
Redeemed during the year FAHEE (414,000)

At 31st December, 2013

R-FE-—=%+-A=1+—H —
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24. DEFERRED TAXATION

The followings are the deferred tax liability (asset) recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

#r /ﬁ\ Eﬁ% %& = Bﬁ &+ (continued #&)
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 HIZE =T — =+ - A=+ —-HILFE

24 B EH IR

EHRBZEEHRBAAE(BE)ARR
AERRBEFERNZESHWT

Tax Convertible

losses notes Total

BIEKBE ThEER st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT BT

At 1st January, 2012 NZE—=—F—H—H (2,539) 4,908 2,369

Charged (credited) to profit or loss 7 8 z5 #1 & (5HA) 1,966 (3,990) (2,024)
At 31st December, 2012 R-E——F+=-_HA=+

—H (573) 918 345

Charged (credited) to profit or loss 7 8 25 #1 & (5F A) 573 (918) (345)

At 31st December, 2013 R-_T—=%
+=-—A=+—8 — — —

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$23,295,000 (2012: HK$31,756,000) available for
offset against future profits. A deferred tax has been recognised
in respect of HK$3,473,000 of such tax losses in 2012. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised for the year in respect
of the tax losses of HK$23,295,000 (2012: HK$28,283,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profits streams. The tax losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

RMEMR  AEB 2 RDHAMIEE
18 5% 123,295,000 (Z T —— 4 :
7 #531,756,0007T) + AT AR K H &
HH o AEBER - ET——FER%SE
T 78 /5 18 75 153,473,000 7T HE SRR IE 7R
TH - BT EETE R A& & F 2R - F
AR 4 B A5 1B /B 98 8 1623,295,0007T
—Z— A #28,283,00000) #ER
BERIEEE - HIBEEAER AL
!

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. g &
Number of ordinary shares Amount
LiEREE ok
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=%5 —E——F —E—=%5 —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETT BEBT T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each % % 1& /& #0.017¢
2 &R
Authorised: ETE
At 1st January and R—HA—BRK
31st December +=—A=+—H 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 10,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: EBRITRAR:
At 1st January and R—A—BK
31st December +=—A=+—H 489,168,308 489,168,308 4,892 4,892
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 474 B4 75 ) 2% M} 5F (continvea #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 B Z - —=F+ - A=+ -HILEFE

26. RESERVES 26. {1

The non-distributable reserve represents the aggregate amount
of the share premium of the subsidiaries as at the time of a
group reorganisation effected on 13th December, 2002 (the
“Group Reorganisation”).

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
subsidiaries and the nominal amount of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange thereof pursuant to the Group
Reorganisation.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
subsidiaries established in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”)
are required to maintain a general reserve fund which is non-
distributable. Appropriations to this reserve fund are made out
of profit for the year of the PRC subsidiaries’ PRC statutory
financial statements which are prepared in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in the PRC. The amount
and allocation basis are decided by the board of directors of the
PRC subsidiaries annually and is not less than 10% of the profit
for the year of the PRC subsidiaries for that year. The general
reserve fund can be used for expanding the capital base of the

PRC subsidiaries by means of capitalisation issue.

TN RFEHEER_ZEZ_F+_A
+=HETEBREA(EBR=H]E
WEAR 2B MhaEAR%E -

EHEBERARESEEARME AR
P A< T fB 48 B8 B K ) it # B G B X
AEBETROEEZEIEZR -

RETRBEZERRAMRE - £F
Bz BAR((HEMEBAR]ZE
RIYU-—MEHEEES MxEFHEEESD
DD - WREREESEMES
BB ARERTEAR SRR
RETBOREMBEHRR 2FREAH ©
BELRDEEERTENBEARZE
EREFET  ERBEAALIRF
EMBARNZEEZFREN0% -
—REREESIRANEBENEET
BATEKBRREAEE -




84 | cNNC International Limited  Annual Report 2013

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 47 & B 7% ¥R 2% M 5% (continued #)
For the year ended 31st December, 2013 HIZE =T — =+ - A=+ —-HILFE

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 27. BBRRHESTE

The Company adopted a share option scheme for a period
of ten years commencing 11th December, 2002 pursuant to a
written resolution of all shareholders passed on 11th December,
2002 (“2002 Share Option Scheme”), for the primary purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to directors of the Company and
eligible employees of the Group. The 2002 Share Option Scheme
expired and was terminated on 11th December, 2012. A new
share option scheme was adopted by the Company pursuant
to a resolution passed on 31st May, 2013 (“2013 Share Option
Scheme”). Under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and 2013
Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant options to eligible
employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to
subscribe for shares in the Company. Additionally, the Company
may, from time to time, grant share options to outside eligible
advisors and consultants to the Company and its subsidiaries at
the discretion of its board of directors.

The number of shares which may be issued under the schemes
are subject to the following limits:

(i) the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the schemes and any
other share option scheme of the Company must not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the total number of issued
shares of the Company from time to time;

(i) without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
the total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the schemes and any other share
option scheme is not permitted to exceed 22,000,000
shares, representing 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company; and

(iii)  the number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of such grant.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable upon acceptance of
the grant of the option. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company and will be at least the higher of (i)
the average of the closing prices of the ordinary shares of the
Company for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the grant; (ii) the closing price of the ordinary shares
of the Company on the date of the grant; and (iii) the nominal

value of the ordinary shares of the Company.

BEE2ERIRR-ZBZ_F+-A+
—HBBZEMAZR  ARAEBEH
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ERAEESERESRM S B R
B —TT-_FHERETEEIEHT
RZZT——F+_A+—BKIE - RE
W_E—Z=ZFRAA=Z+—BRBZR*
B RNRRIE AN —IE B R R
(= —=FmERETE] - BE=
T _FHEREFER T —Z=FE
MREFTE - ARB AT L ERETA
REIRENBARIZEERXREEBRE
B URBEARRDRRMD o I A
RAIBEZRZHBERE I TREL
BRETFTARAREWNBERRZINA
AERER KD AER -

REBEZSFAEATTERTZIRODBER
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BB AT BE R h B A P
BRBEMBE LR - AXTEE
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(i) TEAREBARAFKRERELHME
Al - RBZETEREAEME
frEstE e Rt EREYR 2
% 7 #8 80 - 115+ 3822,000,000
B BERARRAFBEITRAZ
10% : &
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27.

28.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continueq)

Any options granted under the schemes must be exercised during
such option period as may be determined and notified by the
directors of the Company, which shall not exceed 10 years from
the date of acceptance of the option.

No options have been granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme and the 2013 Share Option Scheme since their
adoption.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes amounts due to intermediate holding company and
a fellow subsidiary, convertible notes, net of cash and cash
equivalents, and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising share capital and reserves as disclosed in the
consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
annually. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
assess the annual budget prepared by management of the
Company. Based on the proposed annual budget, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with capital. The directors of the Company also
balance its overall capital structure through new share issues of
the Company as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption

of existing debt.

27.

28.

—E-ZFFH PHRERERAA

:2\\’14_1 /El\ E]f ﬁ% ?E& % M:JL %:E\ (continued #&)

B I BEST &l
BIEZFTER D 2 EMWERERER
AReEEETh Lz ZEBRE
HERTE  EEBETSEBER
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E_SE_FHEREFEN - —=
TR B R - BRI
ZEFER BT ERRE -

EXEBER

AEBEEREANBRRASEERR
BREMFELE RABEBERLEER
Kigs o FERRREABREZRES - K
SEZERRME FFEREFIE o

AEBZEARBEEER  %FE
BERENFNEZERAFAE—RARZ
EZMBARZHREA AHRERE B
ERBeEEMFEARARRAESR
AEHED (BREAVERERAEE
ZBRAR R AEE)

ARREFBFERHEARE - kR
HEHZ 80 ARARNEFHAR
AEEERECFERELTNME -
REZZFERAE ARAEFEE
BARARBRERNBBZER - AR
AIEFMEBARB BT RELT
MESKEBERREESFAFEHHER
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(@) Categories of financial instruments

29. €t T H
() ETEZER

2013 2012
—E—=% —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BT T
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables (including cash and B &% FE U 7018 (B 3EIR
cash equivalents) e RESZEED) 353,969 728,846
Financial liabilities SRIERE
Amortised cost B9 AR 19,271 416,295

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, amount due from an associate, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables, amounts due
to intermediate holding company and a fellow subsidiary
and convertible notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below.

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assets include trade and
other receivables and bank balances and cash. The Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations as at
31st December, 2013 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
At 31st December, 2013, the Group has concentration of
credit risk as the trade receivable balance is wholly due
from the associate of the Group. The balance is not due
up to the end of the reporting period. In order to minimise
the credit risk, management of the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual receivable regularly
to ensure that follow up actions are taken to recover
overdue debts and adequate impairment losses, if any,
are recognised for irrecoverable amounts. The Group only
extends credit to customers based upon careful evaluation
of the customers’ financial conditions and credit history.

(b) &MEABEEEERBE

AEEzTIEZSRMTABHERK
EHRANEMERRIE &
Yol & AR RIR - SRITAE SR MR
& BNEZRREEMENRK
B ENFNMERABR—EH
ISESIENCIE /ISR LS
B NN EFE R T AR
Z R REF R ERR 2 BXR -

EEEE
AEEBZEIESHEERTERK
B 5 8% 5% M HAth B U SR IB A IR
THEHERES RZZE—=F1+
—RA=+—8"  WHFHERE
TEEME  AIXEERSERE
HReMEEMNARZZE&ESE
ERBANGE KRR
CEHEEEEFEE -NZT—=
F+ZA=+—8 FAEEEZ
SR EERE REAREKRES
RREBRHARRAEERE
RNAIZHE - BHEREHKR - B
BB E AR - BREEER
b AEEERETHENSE
BRI W RIE Z AT B & &8 - A
R SR ER R 17 B Uk 2138 A (E 75
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29. £ T B )

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continuea)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continuea)
Credit risk (Continued)
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount

of each individual receivable at the end of the reporting

period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are

recognised for irrecoverable amounts.

In this regard,

the directors of the Company consider that the Group's

(i)

—=FF®R PREKRBERAA

4T B TS 3R R MY 5T (continued )

(b) £REIBEEEERBR

(#)
EERPE =

N AEERFEHRBHS
TEE B fE M k18 2 A] g Bl & &8 -
WREM AR E©BEERTH
BEEE BLms  AARE
ERA KREREAZZEERERE

exposure to bad debts and concentration risk is reduced. R B B2 R ©
Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the HREFAREERIFEBRZR
counterparties are banks with good reputation. T - MRTEBRZEERRSE
PR ©
Market risk i 45 il B
Foreign currency risk management () SMEE B E A
While most of the Group's operations are transacted BEAREBRHADEBT
in the functional currencies of the respective group NEEEERB 2NEER
entities, the Group undertakes certain transactions EIT MASEETET
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group NINEFTEZR S - K&
currently has not formulated any hedging policies =38 Hvﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬂ %
against its exposure to currency risk. However, the 5l TE A ) R R o
Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely REEFEBEY E*T ’>L/'|\
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency e S B B IR HAMNE R -
rate and will consider hedging significant foreign WA E T ERZE LYW
currency exposure should the need arise. BERINERE g -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary REBEUIINBETECEE
assets and monetary liabilities denominated in BEEMBEEEERMIEHR
foreign currencies at the end of both reporting EHRZEEREBENT
periods are as follows:
HK$ CAD MNT RMB Euro AUD
BB mx BEHER AR BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AUTFR AMTR BSTR AMTR A%TR A%Tx
As at 31st December, 2013 R-®—-=#+-A=+-—-H
Assets BE 1,436 65 4,886 4,720 12 20
Liabilities afE 410 — 13,387 1,612 — —
As at 31st December, 2012 R-_F——%+=-A=+-—8
Assets BE 207,413 6,269 6,106 188,238 2 24
Liabilities B{E 498 — 3,602 1,302 — —
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29. £t T A »
b) eHEMRETEBERBEK

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued) (#)

Market risk (continued) 4% B g =)

() Foreign currency risk management (continued) () SMEE B EFE )
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DI

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
5% (2012:
US$ against the relevant foreign currencies. 5%

to a 5%) increase and decrease in
(2012: 5%) represents management’s assessment
of the
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes

reasonably possible change in foreign

only outstanding foreign currencies denominated
monetary items at the end of the reporting period
and adjusted for a 5% (2012: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates a
decrease in loss where US$ weakens 5% (2012: 5%)
against the relevant currencies. For a 5% (2012: 5%)
strengthening of US$ against the relevant currencies,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on
loss. Since HK$ is pegged to US$, relevant foreign
currency risk is minimal and is excluded from the
calculation below.

TREAMASEHETLH
FABEINEF 5% (ZF—=
F:15%) ZBRE - 5% (=
T——F:5%)AEIEEY
SNESERARE IR AR
BEFE  MRESMN
ERERBREHARAKRE
RNz ANEDIEE¥EIER -
I 6 5 ¥ BB R5% (—ZF —
ZF5%) BEEHAE -
LTE#EETLHEBAE
OB ES% (ZF — —F:
5%) BIEBMRL - X
T MR B A ES% (=
T——fF:5%) AlgEHE
BERSEERZTE - H
PR VS B B 3R T BN 88 - HRAR
BN R B R E - AR A
BRTTEELER -

CAD MNT RMB Euro AUD
T BEHRER AR%E 5974 "t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT A¥TT BETT BETRT
2013 —E—=%
Decrease (increase) in loss for the year 4 [ [ 18 & 2> (4% 40) 3 (425) 155 1 1
2012 —E—-%
Decrease in loss for the year FABERD 313 125 9,347 — 1
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29. TR

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Market risk (continued)

(ir)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its bank balances and
convertible notes. Bank balances at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.
Details of the Group’s bank balances are disclosed
in note 20.

The Group is not exposed to significant cash flow
interest-rate risk on financial instruments as the
interest of the Group’s financial liabilities and
fluctuation in interest rate are insignificant. Also,
the directors of the Company consider that interest
bearing bank deposits are within short maturity
period and the effect on fluctuation in interest rate

is insignificant.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

The Group is no longer exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to the liability component of the
fixed rate convertible notes after the full redemption
of convertible notes in March 2013.

%’/A_ﬂ\ /El\ E]f ﬁ% 3:'!?& i% MTJL I%E\ (continued #&)

(b) £REIBEEEERBR

(%)

i 45 B g )

(i1)

Fl|E 7 B
AEBZMNEEHRAKE
ERRHEBITEBRAITR
BREBRMB - REZHEX
B ZRITEBERAEAE
EEmMERE AN ER
%o NEBIRITHEBRFE
B FE20H 5B -

HRASESREEZHN
BRAMEZ R R RE
BWASEYERSRTA
EHEXRRSRENER
eI RRABEEFER
R RFRBRITERTD
EREMARE - BA XK
B EREERM -

7R SR [ 35 B 3 4 R R S O
BE-AM BEEESER
BN RE R LEREEE
ERHHMEBRMEER °

R-T— 6= ARNED
THEREEG  AEET
FAE R R AR
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29. &R T B )

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives and

(9]

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of

fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details Group’s contractual maturity for
its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The table has been drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required
to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash
flows.

AR e B R I A

it (continued #)

(b) £REIBEEEERBR

(#)

B & £ B BE
REBRBASERE - A%LH
BEERESASRRSSEDY
BEREBERBRRZKT - I
BRAEEZEEMEE SRR
BERERERDITE -

TRHAVNAEBHTLESHAE
RIZ T & R R 2 B KB HIB
e ZRBTIRBEALE A ER
NRZEFEEMZERMBERR
ARERERE - ZARBEHEHN
BRAEZRERE -

On
Weighted demand Total Total
average or 0to30 31to 60 61 to 365 undiscounted carrying
interest rate days days days cash flows amount
mEXRY ME 61F KRBMBERS AR T
MEFHHE  0E30H 60H 365H mEEE “HiE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% BEFTT BETT BETT BEFT BETT
As at 31st December, 2013 R-F—=%
+=-A=+-—H
Trade and other payables e E 5B R R H A FE
DES] — 17,659 — — 17,659 17,659
Amount due to intermediate JE A R 12 AR A R SRIE
holding company — 1,588 — — 1,588 1,588
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary N —HRATRMB AR
HIE — 24 — — 24 24
19,271 == — 19,271 19,271
As at 31st December, 2012 MN-_T——%f
+=-A=+-—H
Trade and other payables R E SRR R
H A fE A 3RO — 7,203 — — 7,203 7,203
Amount due to intermediate JERT RN R AR KIE
holding company — 1,302 — — 1,302 1,302
Convertible notes R R R 8.8 — — 415,883 415,883 407,790
8,505 — 415,883 424,388 416,295
H \
Fair value () AF{E

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate to their fair values.

TREERSBRABZIAFED
URBRBEREDNMREERE
BEEARZIEBEAETE -

ARBEERR  RNEAMHR
RNREHKIA R Z G REE
kemaERmEEEQFER

4+

E o
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30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

31.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had outstanding
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases for rented premises which fall due
as follows:

30.

—E-ZFFH PHRERERAA

4T B TS 3R R MY 5T (continued )

EEHERIE

RBEMAK  ARBRERD AL
Ty 2 FAMBEEAE  RTHE
£ 5 A S 1 2 R (8 B 46 R R R A
BRI -

2013 2012

—E—-=fF —EB——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

EETR BT T

Within one year —&R 1,543 963
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_FEERF

(BREEREMF) 2,255 —

3,798 963

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for certain of its office. Leases are negotiated for a terms of 1
to 3 years initially and rentals are fixed and no arrangements
have been entered into for contingent rental payments.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Effective from 1st December, 2000, the Group has participated
in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
for all its eligible employees in Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme
is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of an
independent trustee. Under the rules of the MPF Scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at rates specified in the rules. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme
is to make the required contributions under the scheme. No
forfeited contributions are available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future years.

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
Mongolia State, the Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (“the Schemes”) organised by the
Government of Mongolia whereby the Group is required to
make contributions to the Schemes at a rate of 11%-13% of
the eligible employees’ salaries. Contributions to the Schemes
vest immediately.

During the year, the total amount contributed by the Group to
the relevant retirement benefit schemes is HK$142,000 (2012:
HK$241,000).

31.

REBENFEAREREETHA
ERNZEE - FIEZVIZHESF
HAE3F - BHEDEFE BXEF
HAREE MR LERM L

3B 4K 18 #l 51 2l

AEBEH_ZTEE+_A-BER
HEEMERERERZ2H —THAH
Mot E(REEED - RE
At EIREBER S ERE S BEDIE
BRHEREEFEEEREM - B
B ZEEMB I ETAEZES - &
AEBZEESRAFA REBRRES
AElZARR BERERBRESBEAR
MAEE Z EE R LA BIF R - &
SERREAEAZHE-BEER
REBEAEMFLAAFIHRR - AKEME
28 WA TR DA BRI R 2R AR R A 2

Eon
A °

BRERHEZABEE T AR LR
AEE2RRLIBFEN 2 EEER
BRENEE (T%FTEL & &
SEARAERRERF S ZN%EIZ%
Mz ErFEERHER - MZFFTE 2
HARTENEFE

FAREERNEHEAERBHNGE 242
TR A AE142,000L (ZT—=F : &
#£241,0007T) ©
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32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 32. FAEFHIHE

The following transactions and balances were entered into during

the year or outstanding at the end of the reporting period

respectively.

AT R K& DRI RFERNGTLER
HBEMRAREER -

(i) Remuneration of directors and other (i) EERHMBIFTEETHER
members of key management SZiME
The remuneration of directors and other members of key FRNESENEMEIZEERENKE
management during the year was as follows: ZMEmT:
2013 2012
—E—-=% —E—_—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
Short-term benefits SEECEER 4,584 5,449
Post-employment benefits BRI T 102 108
4,686 5,557
The remuneration of directors and key executives is FWEZEEeEEEERETENTHR
determined by the remuneration committee having regard ABZEBIRE LTS8 EEE
to the performance of individuals and market trends. EREZE 2 H B -
(ii) Transactions and balances with PRC (i) RPEESEBAFHEHES
government-related entities in the PRC BzXeR&EH

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
pre-dominated by entities controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by the PRC government.

In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger group of
companies under CNNC which is controlled by the PRC
government. The transactions and balances are disclosed
in note 22 and the issue and conversion of convertible
notes are set out in note 23 and the related effective
interest expenses of HK$8,093,000 (2012: HK$32,464,000)
to its immediate holding company in which interest paid
amounted to HK$1,883,000 (2012: HK$8,280,000).

The Group has also entered into various transactions,
including deposits placements with certain banks and
financial institutions which are PRC government-related
entities in its ordinary course of business. The directors of
the Company are of the opinion that except as disclosed
above, transactions with other PRC government related
entities are not significant to the Group’s operations.

AREBEEZEBERIREATE
B - KRESHBEERF
E7ERTE -

ot AEBEAF AP IZEBE
TRERRKBZ— MPxE
BEXABEBAES - X5k EH
WERW 22 BT RE RN B
BEEHAMFE23 THEE
B AT AT 18,093,0007T
(Z=—=%F : B¥32,464,0007T)
ZHEBEBRAERX (EFEH
F B A& 7 #1,883,0000 (=& —
—4F : 5 %8,280,0007T)) °

AEBETN—REBBEPERE
TETBERFHEBER ZRTR
TREBITVZIERS  BRF
EFER - ARBEERAS KL
BN - B E A B U AR R

B2 RSHAEEEELTE

go
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32. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continuea

(iii) During the year ended 31st December, 2013, the associate

—E-ZFFH PHRERERAA

ﬁﬁ‘% 3:5& i% MT.T I:EJE\ (continued #5)

E_E—=F+-A=+—HBILtEE

32. BESHE

of the Group has commenced the mining operation
and made sales of uranium of HK$1,543,718,000 (2012:
HK$231,032,000) to a fellow subsidiary of the Company,

which is a subsidiary of CNNC.

(iv)

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, the Group

(iv)

made sales of uranium of HK$1,168,097,000 (2012: nil) to

the associate of Group.

(v)

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, the Group

(v)

paid rental and related expenses of HK$2,309,000 (2012:
nil) to fellow subsidiaries of the Company, which are the
subsidiaries of CNNC, for its office in Beijing, the PRC.

(note)

(vi)

During the year ended 31st December, 2013, the Group

(vi)

paid technical support fee of HK$329,000 (2012: nil)
to fellow subsidiaries of the Company, which are the

subsidiaries of CNNC. (note)

Note:

Apart from the tenancy agreement and technical support agreements entered

into by the Company and a subsidiary of CNNC, none of the above related

party transactions constitutes a discloseable connected transaction as defined

in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

(iii) #z—T—=5+-A=+—H1

FERN AEBE—BBEAFE
FARFEER  wmAQE—[
AERWEAR (RPZEE M
BAE) HEB1,543,718,0007T
— T — 4 % %231,032,000
TO)Z MR E M o

HE-Z—=F+=-A=+—H
IEFER AEERAEE—M
& N B 8 & 8 11,168,097,000
T(ZE—ZF B)ZHER -

BE-_ZT—=F+-_A=+—H1t
FEN  AEBEEMCAPEIL
R MERRARGE R RN B
RE(ATFZEEZHNBAR) X
1€ R/ A %2,309,000
T(ZT——F:F) - (5E)

HEe_Z2—=F+=-HA=+—H
FETFER - AEBEMRARAMR
BEMBAR (AR ZER 2K
BRAAINHEMZEERAL
329,000L (ZE—=F : T) o (f
#)

MiE: BRARAEDZEBZHBATTLZ

HEBHERBEMIEBHN LS
77 R 5 8L HE BB X A AR 25 R TR AU AR
EEZATHRERERS -
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL BAEAATEEMEBATIHE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at the end of both RREREER ARz EZMNE
reporting periods are as follows: NEFFERAT
Issued and fully paid Proportion of inal value of issued/registered
Name of subsidiary Place of incorporation share/registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERTRYRRG/ FARRAERT/
HBAEEH a1 R I B 3 ES dRRAEEZLG TRER
Directly Indirectly
BE G
2013 2012 2013 2012
—®-=f -"T--f Z®-=§ -—T--%
% % % %
China Nuclear International Corporation  British Virgin Islands Ordinary shares US$50,000 100 100 = — Investment holding
("BVI")
TRERKREERARF ERABRES ¥i@50,000% T REER
([REERRES))
CNNC International (HK) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$10,000 — — 100 100 Service Company
TRER(FE)ERAR Bk EAARE10,0007T R 2R
Emeelt Mines LLC People of Mongolia Registered capital — — 100 100 Mineral exploration in the
US$10,000 Mongolia State
Emeelt Mines LLC E] AR 10,000% T REEERR
Ideal Mining BVI Registered capital 100 — — 100  Investment holding
US$50,000
ERRE ERABRES i B 50,0005 7T REER
Western Prospector Mongolia LLC People of Mongolia Registered capital — — 100 100 Mineral exploration in the
US$10,000 Mongolia State
Western Prospector Mongolia LLC E AR A10,000% 7T RELTERE
Focus International Development BVI Ordinary shares US$50,000 - — 100 100 Trading of uranium
Corporation
EHERUERARRAT ABRARES &8 7%50,000% 7T HERES
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the EAEEEE  TEMBAT T
end of the year. AEFEEE
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, R AR ER AT ELEREF
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results, wE BERAEBEIAATHBAT o
assets and liabilities of the Group. To give details of other EEZANLHMHREBEATIZES
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in FEEERBRITE -

particulars of excessive length.
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Information about the Statement of & 74~ 2 & 81 % Akt # &k & %
Financial Position of the Company

(@) statement of financial position of the Company at the end of

(b)

the reporting period:

(a)

RBEHRARAHHRBER:

2013 2012
—F-=% —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT ST T
Assets and liabilities BEERERE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB AR ZRE 122,919 122,919
Interest in an associate REEE RB 2= 316,077 —
Amounts due from subsidiaries N ENGIE ] 480,928 1,025,645
Other receivables H Ath B W 5B — 272
Bank balances and cash RITEHRAIRE 3,287 260,269
Total assets BEE 923,211 1,409,105
Other payables and accruals H b JE A 5E KB R R K 2,160 1,953
Convertible notes AR R 5 — 407,790
Deferred taxation iE E I8 — 345
Total liabilities FER=R = 2,160 410,088
Total assets less liabilities MEERBE 921,051 999,017
Capital and reserves BERGE
Share capital [N 4,892 4,892
Reserves & 916,159 994,125
921,051 999,017
Statement of changes in equity (b) EXEEE
Non-  Convertible
Share Share Capital distributable notes equity Translation Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
TRBEER
BE BHGRE BXEE TIPREHE BAEE BREEE RitEHE gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEEFT BETT BETFT BT BEFT EETR BEFT BETrT
At 1st January, 2012 N-ZTE——F—F—H 4,892 868,805 31,392 98,291 60,636 — (52,127) 1,011,889
Loss and total comprehensive 4 A 518 &
expense for the year PEMETBE — — — — — — (12,872) (12,872)
At 31st December, 2012 RZE——F+-A=+—8 4,892 868,805 31,392 98,291 60,636 — (64,999) 999,017
Loss and total comprehensive 4 A i F &2
expense for the year 2EBANLE — — — — — — (78,490) (78,490)
Exchange differences arising ¥ 8 E 4 2
on translation [EHZ% — — — — — 524 — 524
Transfer on redemption of A fi& [2 7] #2
convertible notes % 58 4% i 68 % — — (644) — (60,636) = 61,280 =
At 31st December, 2013 R-Z—=F+=-A=+—H 4,892 868,805 30,748 98,291 — 524 (82,209) 921,051
P I —
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Financial Summary 81 7% 2

Set out below is a financial summary of the Group for each of the M T#HIAEEBHE-T—=F+-A=+
five years ended 31st December, 2013: — AT EFESF2UBHE:

RESULTS 4

For the year ended 31st December,
BE+-HA=+—-BHLEE
2009 2010 20m 2012 2013
“EENF ZB-FF —%——F —FT-—F Z¥-Z=F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT AT BETR BETR EHTR

Revenue g 2 136,571 168,048 93,303 417,442 1,168,097
Loss before taxation PRt Al B 1B (41,655)  (62,856)  (60,824)  (23,184) (4,749)
Taxation credit (charge) BEER(ZE) 1,265 7,777 3,431 (2,954) (13,864)
Loss for the year ERNEE (40,390)  (55,079)  (57,393)  (26,138) (18,613)
Loss per share FhEE
— basic (HK cents) — EARGEAL) (10.1) (12.8) (13.1) (5.3) (3.8)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREBRE
As at 31st December,
R+=-A=+-—H
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013

“TENF T2 F —T——F —£——-F ZEB-Z=f
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFIT BEFT BEF BETFL EETT

Total assets BEE 994,918 1,472,283 1,390,804 1,395,599 994,570
Total liabilities mafRE (137,323)  (521,444) (399,455)  (430,852) (47,599)
Equity attributable to owners ERREE A

of the Company J& 1 1 21 857,595 950,839 991,349 964,747 946,971




Unit 2809, 28th Floor
China Resources Building
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2598 1010
Fax: (852) 2598 6262
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